
Please ask for Christine Morgan: Telephone 01775 764454 
e-mail: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

AGENDA

Committee - GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

Date & Time - Thursday, 18 October 2018 at 6.30 pm

Venue - Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding

Membership of the Governance and Audit Committee:

Councillors: G R Aley (Chairman), D Ashby, J R Astill (Vice-Chairman), C J T H Brewis, 
P C Foyster, A Harrison and M D Seymour

Revised quorum 3.

Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn off mobile telephones 

Democratic Services
Council Offices, Priory Road
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE

Date:  10 October 2018



AGENDA
PLEASE NOTE TIMINGS
ARE APPROXIMATE

TIME
6.30 pm 1. Apologies for absence. 

6.31 pm 2. Declaration of Interests - (Where a Councillor has a 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest the Councillor must 
declare the interest to the meeting and leave the room 
without participating in any discussion or making a 
statement on the item, except where a Councillor is 
permitted to remain as a result of a grant of 
dispensation). 

6.32 pm 3. Minutes - To sign as a correct record the minutes of the 
meeting held on 26 July 2018 (copy enclosed).

(Pages 5 - 
14)

6.35 pm 4. Quarter 2 2018-19 Risk Report - To inform the 
Committee on the current status of the Council’s 
strategic risks (report of the Executive Director Strategy 
and Governance enclosed).

(Pages 15 
- 26)

6.45 pm 5. Risk Management Policy - To seek formal adoption of 
the revised Risk Management policy into working 
practice (report of the Executive Director Strategy and 
Governance enclosed).

(Pages 27 
- 50)

6.55 pm 6. SHDC Annual Audit Letter 2017-18 - (report of KPMG 
enclosed).

(Pages 51 
- 60)

7.05 pm 7. Progress report on Internal Audit activity - To examine 
the progress made between 1 April 2018 and 1 October 
2018 in relation to the completion of the Annual Internal 
Audit Plan for 2018/19 (report of the Head of Internal 
Audit enclosed).

(Pages 61 
- 74)

7.15 pm 8. Follow up report on Internal Audit recommendations - To 
provide members with the position on progress made by 
management in implementing agreed Internal Audit 
recommendations as at 30 September 2018 (report of 
the Head of Internal Audit enclosed).

(Pages 75 
- 86)

7.25 pm 9. Governance and Audit Committee Self Assessment - 
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) document on “audit committees – 
practical guidance for local authorities and police” sets 
out the guidance in the function and operation of audit 
committees. It is good practice for audit committees to 
complete a regular self-assessment exercise, to be 
satisfied that the Committee is performing effectively 
(report of the Head of Internal Audit is enclosed).

(Pages 87 
- 98)



7.35 pm 10. Mid Term Treasury Report 2018/19 - To provide an 
update on the Treasury Management position of the 
Council as at 30 September 2018 (report of the 
Executive Director Commercialisation (Section 151 
Officer) enclosed).

(Pages 99 
- 114)

7.45 pm 11. Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme - To 
set out the Work Programme of the Governance and 
Audit Committee (report of the Executive Manager 
Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer) – Mark Stinson 
enclosed).

(Pages 
115 - 120)

7.50 pm 12. Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent. 

NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by 
reason of special circumstances, which 
shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) 
should be considered as a matter of 
urgency.



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

Minutes of a meeting of the GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE held in the 
Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Thursday, 26 July 2018 
at 6.30 pm.

PRESENT

G R Aley (Chairman)
J R Astill (Vice-Chairman)

C J T H Brewis A Harrison  

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors P C Foyster   

In Attendance: Executive Director – Commercialisation, Head of CPBS Operations,  
H Brookes (Manager, KPMG), E Hodds (Head of Internal Audit, Eastern Internal Audit 
Services), Councillor P E Coupland, F Haywood (Internal Audit Manager, Eastern 
Internal Audit Services), Environmental Services Manager and Democratic Services 
Officer

Action By
9. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

There were no declarations of interest. 

10. MINUTES 

The minutes of the Governance and Audit Committee meeting 
held on 24 May 2018 were signed by the Chairman as a correct 
record. 

11. QUARTER 1 2018-19 RISK REPORT 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Strategy and Governance which informed the Committee of the 
current status of the Council’s strategic risks.

The committee noted the following:

There was currently one risk in the high risk category.  This 
related to the critical breach of ICT which had remained at the 
same score at it was in the last quarter.  Whilst this risk remained 
at a high level, there had been positive mitigations that had been 
put in place over the last quarter, such as the introduction of a 
dedicated security analyst role within the service, as well as the 
implementation of business approved ICT maintenance windows 
which allowed the ICT service to implement necessary security 
patches and updates.

There were currently thirteen risks which fell into the medium 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3.



- 2 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
26 July 2018

category. Of these risks, all remained at the same score as last 
quarter.

Of the thirteen risks, it was noted that the risk around the impact 
of the Homelessness Reduction Act remained quite high however, 
there had been some very promising mitigations and actions 
undertaken by the service to ensure that it could cope with the 
level of demand.  Such implementations included new specialist 
case management software, as well as adding new key 
experienced members of staff onto a fixed term contract.  In 
addition, recent changes in accommodation and offices ensured 
that all housing staff were working together and building a 
customer centred focus.

An additional risk was the implementation of GDPR (General Data 
Protection Regulations), and how this had affected the council.  
Whilst the risk remained unchanged due to work still ongoing, 
there had been much progress made in ensuring the council 
managed its data properly, and in accordance with GDPR (such 
as the development of new policies and procedures, as well as 
the preparation and implementation of privacy notices and the 
Information Assets Register).  A formal audit had also been 
agreed, to commence in December 2018 – when the outcomes of 
the audit were known, the risk would be re-assessed.

Members stated that all potential risks which were rated red (high 
impact, high likelihood) for risk score were all potential risks which 
were felt by Local Authorities nationwide. Therefore it was 
considered that such risks were unavoidable.

The Chairman asked if, with the risk of cyber security, the 
authority would do anything to combat this risk. Officers stated 
that the authority was in a good place to deal with such a cyber 
risk already, with all recommendations raised by Internal Audit in 
this regard having been actioned.

AGREED:

That the contents of the report be noted.  

12. PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY 

Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Internal 
Audit which examined the progress made between 28 February 
2018 and 13 July 2018, in relation to the completion of the Annual 
Internal Audit Plan for 2017/18.

The Head of Internal Audit introduced the report.

Page 6



- 3 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
26 July 2018

In terms of budget management there would be no conclusion at 
this meeting and would it be brought to the committee on a later 
date.

The Head of Internal Audit stated that there had been a lot of 
work undertaken over the last 4 months, which had meant that 
audit reports were finalised late in the financial year. 

Members asked if the risk of confusion caused by the introduction 
of Universal Credit was being considered. The Head of Internal 
Audit stated that because the authority was late coming into the 
Universal Credit system in comparison with other authorities, a lot 
of the issues that early adopters faced had already been resolved. 
Furthermore, the Head of CPBS Operations stated that a lot of 
work had been done to prepare for the adoption of Universal 
Credit.

It was stated that the Accounts payable report had been finalised 
in April 2018.

The topic of the CPBS Audits was raised by members. They 
asked for clarification on why TIAA offered an assurance called a 
‘reasonable assurance’ whereas the CPBS equivalent was called 
a ‘substantial assurance’. Members felt that ‘reasonable’ and 
‘substantial’ had different meanings, yet both seemed to offer the 
same level of assurance. The Head of Internal Audit reminded the 
Committee that this was explained to the Committee in every 
Progress Report that they received, and that the explanations / 
definitions behind the assurance are similar, hence the TIAA 
terminology being used for ease of comparison for Members

Members raised the matter of the limited assurance for Human 
Resources, asking whether the urgent recommendations would 
have deadlines applied to them. The Head of CPBS operations 
answered that deadlines were already in place and were set for 
September. It was further stated that regular updates would be 
brought to the Governance and Audit Committee.

AGREED:

That the completion of the internal audit plan of work for 2017/18 
be noted. 

EH 

13. FOLLOW UP REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Internal 

Page 7



- 4 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
26 July 2018

Audit for South Holland District Council which provided members 
with the position on the progress made by management in 
implementing agreed Internal Audit Recommendations as at 31 
March 2018.

The Head of Internal Audit stated that in relation to the audit 
recommendations raised in 206/17, 80 recommendations were 
complete, 2 had been superseded and 6 were outstanding.

The Head of Internal Audit further confirmed that in relation to the 
90 recommendations raised in 2017/18, 18 were complete, 69 
were not yet due and three were outstanding. The Committee’s 
attention was drawn to the 69 recommendations that were not yet 
due but did still present a risk to the Council

The Chairman, in reference to the outstanding recommendations 
asked for a summary of how work to resolve these 
recommendations was progressing. The Head of Internal Audit 
stated the Council  had agreed an action plan and at the time of 
this meeting was addressing this, but that a close eye should be 
kept on the outstanding recommendations to ensure they did not 
get out of hand.

AGREED:

That the report be noted. 

14. ANNUAL REPORT AND OPINION 2017/18 

Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Internal 
Audit which provided the members with an Annual Report and 
Opinion for 2017/18, drawing upon the outcomes of Internal Audit 
work performed over the course of the year.

The Head of Internal Audit stated that the report provided a 
summary of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s 
framework of governance, risk management and control.

The Head of Internal Audit summarised their findings, and raised 
concerns that the Committee needed to be made aware of.

In paragraph 3.4 of the report, it outlined the list of issues for 
inclusion in the Annual Governance Statement. It was stated by 
the Head of Internal Audit that it was expected that management 
would be taking action to address these issues:

Environmental Protection – The urgent recommendation had 
now been addressed and the action plan had been completed for 

Page 8



- 5 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
26 July 2018

all important recommendations. The Head of Internal Audit 
therefore concluded that Environmental Protection was no longer 
a cause for concern.

Section 106 (S106) Arrangements – Previously there had been 
no oversight over S106 arrangements, however, responsible 
officers were in the process of being identified and the newly 
formed Strategic Growth Board provided much needed oversight. 
In addition, regular reports had started to be presented to the 
Performance Monitoring Panel. Members felt that this 
improvement was very welcome. Members asked if the major 
issue surrounding S106 was that allocated money wasn’t being 
spent in good time. The Head of Internal Audit responded that this 
was part of the case, but that another major contributor was that 
there was not a system of overall control of S106.

Asset management – The Head of Internal Audit felt that the 
Asset Management Strategy needed reviewing and this was 
being progressed. It was also stated that the day-to day 
processes needed to be working better, but it was recognised that 
the Council was looking into solutions to this. Members asked if 
there was a suggestion for Breckland District Council (BDC) to 
run South Holland District Council’s (SHDC) industrial units. In 
response it was stated that there was an agreement being looked 
at to share best practices between BDC and SHDC. One Member 
stated that industrial units should be run from within the district 
and that they would vehemently oppose any proposition to alter 
that.

Revenues, Payroll and HR and Accounts Receivable – The 
Head of Internal Audit stated that significant issues had been 
raised in reports and that repetitive issues were found as part of 
the audit testing. The Head of Internal Audit recommended that 
the committee keep a close eye on these issues to ensure that 
they were resolved

Members noted in the report that East Lindsay District Council 
(ELDC) had experienced delays in completing the Third Party 
Audit Reports for Quarter 4, the result of which was that not all of 
the information relevant to the Annual Audit opinion was available 
in time for discussion. Members asked for an explanation for the 
delays. The Head of Internal Audit stated that there were reasons 
for the delay and assured the committee that the causes were 
being addressed. Resultantly members requested that a response 
be provided by ELDC to confirm the reasons for the delay and 
what steps were being taken to address these.

EH 

Page 9



- 6 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
26 July 2018

The Executive Director – Commercialisation felt that audits 
sharpened focus, and would ensure recommendations were 
addressed in a timely manner. Members stated that the fact that a 
limited opinion was reported to the committee was enough 
justification for requesting more information.

Members asked why cyber security wasn’t being audited again, if 
a limited assurance had been concluded in the past. The Head of 
Internal Audit stated that all recommendations had been 
satisfactorily addressed and due to this, a follow up was not 
needed at the time of this meeting.

One Member asked, for how long the Head of Internal Audit been 
working as auditor on behalf of SHDC, they responded that this 
had been since April 2016, following formal approval by Full 
Council. In response to a query raised by a member, the Head of 
Internal Audit reassured the Committee that the opinion given was 
independent, objective and unfettered.

The Head of Internal Audit stated that follow up reports could be 
sent to all further meetings. Members agreed that this was a good 
idea and requested that it be actioned.

AGREED:

1) That the Committee receive and approve the contents of 
the Annual Report and Opinion of the Head of Internal 
Audit;

2) That the Committee note that a Limited Audit opinion had 
been given in relation to governance, risk management 
and control for the year ended 31 March 2018;

3) That the Committee note that the opinions expressed 
together with significant matters arising from internal audit 
work and contained within the report should be given due 
consideration, when developing and reviewing the 
Council’s Annual Governance Statement for 2017/18; and

4) That the Committee note the conclusions of the Review of 
the Effectiveness of Internal Audit. 

EH 

15. ISA 260 REPORT 17/18 

Consideration was given to KPMG’s report to those charged with 
governance (ISA260) for 2017/18.  It summarised the key findings 
arising from their audit of South Holland District Council’s 2017/18 
financial statements and their work to support their 2017/18 

Page 10



- 7 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
26 July 2018

conclusion on the Authority’s arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

The Audit Manager (KPMG) summarised their work for the year 
(pages 86 and 87). The audit was substantially complete. It had 
been a challenging year for creation of accounts and conclusion 
of the audit. It was hoped that the conclusions would meet the 
deadline at the end of July.

Issues were raised around the super user access in the payroll 
system. It was recommended that a 3rd party assurance report be 
requested for the following year.

The Auditors stated that the working papers were good and so 
were the audit trails. Two risks had been raised in the past year, 
but there were no further issues to raise.

The area of audit focus was on closing issues faster, this work 
had not raised any further problems.

The Audit Manager (KPMG) said that there was one new 
recommendation around access controls for payroll and one risk 
related to financial resilience. 

The Chairman asked if there was anything in the report worthy of 
concern. The Audit Manager (KPMG) stated that they felt there 
was no detail in the report which they considered concerning.

Members thanked KPMG for a concise and easy to read report.

AGREED:

That the ISA 260 report for 2017/18 be noted.

 

16. APPROVAL OF ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT, FOR 
INCLUSION WITH THE COUNCIL’S PUBLISHED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS, AND APPROVAL OF THE AUDITED 17/18 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director – 
Commercialisation (S151) which sought approval for the Annual 
Governance Statement for inclusion with the Council’s Published 
Statements 2017/18.

Officers stated that this was the final stage for approval. An un-

Page 11



- 8 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
26 July 2018

audited statement had been received in May by the Governance 
and Audit Committee, the main change being with reference to 
the points raised by the Head of Internal Audit.

Members asked if it was possible to be penalised for consistent 
poor performance on capital. The Executive Director - 
Commercialisation responded that, no, it was not and that due to 
the administration of capital, the authority’s position on capital 
was better than it appeared to be in reports and this position was 
being refined and improved upon for future reports.

AGREED:

That the Governance and Audit Committee

1) Approve the Financial Statements 2017/18;

2) Approve the Annual Governance Statement 2017/18; and

3) Approve the Letter of Representation to KPMG 

17. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT. 

There were none. 

18. GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK 
PROGRAMME 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager 
Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer) which set out the Work 
Programme of the Governance and Audit Committee, as set out 
in Appendix A within the report.

Follow up reports to be produced by the Internal Auditors and 
brought to all further meetings.

AGREED:

That the report and content of the Work Programme be noted. 

CM 

(The meeting ended at 7.36 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 12



- 9 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
26 July 2018

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Maxine O’Mahony - Executive Director of Strategy and Governance

To: Governance and Audit Committee – 18th October 2018

Author: Corey Gooch – Senior Business Intelligence Officer

Subject: Quarterly Risk Report, Q2 2018/19

Purpose: To inform the Committee on the current status of the Councils’ strategic 
risks

Recommendation: 

1)  That the contents of the report are noted.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1. The last risk report to the Governance and Audit Committee was in July 2018 for Q1.  
Since then, there have been a small number of changes to the strategic risk register 
which are highlighted in this report.  

1.2 This report is generated using the Covalent (Pentana) system and includes updates on 
strategic risks for quarter 2, 2018/19.

1.3 Strategic risks are visible on the Corporate Dashboard which is available to the Executive 
Management Team (EMT) and risks are reviewed by EMT quarterly.  In addition, risks 
are reviewed monthly at the officer-led Performance, Risk & Audit Board chaired by the 
Executive Director of Strategy and Governance.

1.4. Strategic risks have been reviewed and updated with the responsible members of EMT.  
These cover the over-arching risks that may affect the strategic direction of the council, 
rather than risks linked to business continuity or those that affect discreet service areas. 
The strategic risk register includes 16 strategic risks (see Appendix A). 

1.5 Strategic risks typically affect the whole of the organisation and not just one or more parts 
of it. Strategic risks can potentially involve very high stakes and often affect the ability of 
the organisation to survive, e.g. impact on the ability of the Council to achieve its 
corporate plan objectives and purpose. 

1.6 The Council’s risk scoring mechanism is based on a 5x5 matrix, and is comparable with 
best practice in other, similar organisations.  The risk matrix provides a comprehensive 
assessment and understanding of risk likelihood and impact. The matrix results in a 
numerical score which combines the impact of the risk occurring with the likelihood of it 
happening.

1.7 Risks fall into High, Medium or Low categories depending on their rating 
High
Medium
Low

Page 15

Agenda Item 4.



1.8 Risks are tracked below in a heat map to represent the number of strategic risks currently 
reported at each score 

1.9 It is pleasing to report that in this quarter there were no risks that were rated into the high 
risk category, in the last quarter the risk relating to the critical breach of ICT security was 
rated as high, this was due to intelligence coming in from Russian cyber security threats 
and the potential for this to result in cyber security attacks, following on from this 
mitigations have taken place such as the introduction of a dedicated security analyst as 
well as security maintenance windows allowing the service to implement new upgrades 
and improvements to security. Following on in this quarter there have been no further 
concerns of alerts relating to cyber-attacks or security breaches and all appropriate 
mitigation has taken place, these points along with the level of investment and 
enhancements made to IT security over the last few years puts us in a better position 
than ever and has therefore allowed us to reduce the likelihood of this risk occurring.

1.10 There are currently thirteen risks which fall into the medium category. Of these risks, 
there has been one risk raised into the medium category which was previously scored as 
low and that is the risk around the failure to implement corporate business continuity.

  It is important to note that whilst his risk has raised slightly in likelihood, there have been 
no particular incidents or concerns raised to incur such a change in risk. This risk has 
been re-assessed to what the service feels is a more accurate score following the 
implementation of an emergency planning who has been working in conjunction with 
Brecklands emergency planning officer where assessments to determine training needs 
and critical service areas have taken place. All business impact assessments and 
emergency plans are in draft or complete across the authority however work is still 
underway to ensure all critical services are identified and covered in business continuity 
plans. This work as well as training is expected to be rolled out or completed by the end 
of 2018 and at this point this risk is expected to reduce further.

1.11 There are 2 risks currently reported in the low category and the change in this area 
relates to the delivery of the local plan, this risk was previously scored as a medium level 
risk but has since reduced in Q2 due to the local plan modifications consultation closing 
on the 28th August, the council is expected to receive the examiner’s report in October 
which will hopefully allow the plan to be adopted before the end of the calendar year. In 
light of this significant process the strategic planning service consider it appropriate to 

Page 16



lower this risk in Q2.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 That the contents of the report are noted.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1 Not applicable

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 That the Committee is made aware of the Council’s strategic risks and understands that 
they are being managed and mitigated effectively.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Corporate Priorities

5.1.1 The report contains information on strategic risks relevant to the delivery of the 
Council’s corporate priorities.

5.2 Financial

5.2.1 The report contains information on strategic risks relevant to the Council’s        
budgets and financial management.

5.3 Risk Management

5.3.1 The report provides detail on the Council’s strategic risks.

5.4 Staffing

5.4.1 The report contains information on strategic risks relevant to the delivery of the 
           Council’s corporate priorities 

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 No wards or communities are affected

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 EMT – Executive Management Team

Background papers:- See The Committee Report Guide

Lead Contact Officer

Page 17

file:///G:/Committee/Committee/Report%20Guide/2014/THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc


Name and Post: Ross Bangs – Corporate Improvement and Performance 
Manager 

Telephone Number: 07870 835233
Email: Ross.bangs@breckland-sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

This report refers to a Discretionary Service 

Appendices attached to this report: 

Appendix A South Holland District Council Strategic Risk Register (Q2 
2018/19)

Page 18



SHDC Strategic Risk Report 
 

Title Description Original
Assessment Controls/Mitigation Current Risk

Score Impact Likeli-
hood

Trend
(last
qtr)

Latest Note

Medium
Term
Financial
Plan Not
Delivered

The Medium Term 
Financial Plan 
includes a balanced
 position which is 
dependant on 
delivery of further 
savings

12

There are a number of 
controls in place to track 
delivery including finance 
board, Performance, Risk
 & Audit Board & EMT. 
PI's are tracking variance
 from plan

12 4 3

Mitigation continues with a 
number of boards tracking 
progress and monitoring 
delivery of the financial plan. 
 
Monthly commercial reports 
are presented to the executive 
management team who will 
continue to monitor.

Uncertainty
over future
government
 funding
settlement

Government funding
 reductions due to a
 weakening of the 
economy may be 
experienced during 
the period of the 
MTFP 

12

4yr MTFP sets out 
programme to be free of 
reliance on RSG by 
2019. Setting investment 
funds, commercial 
property and growth to 
ensure continued income. 
Star chamber exercises 
and constant forward 
looking reviews are now 
underway.

12 4 3

This risk will be monitored 
closely and we will keep a 
constant watching brief due to 
the changing environment and 
unprecedented levels of 
uncertainty.

Impact of
business
rate appeals

Business rate 
retention policy 
changes leave the 
council exposed to 
risks on collection 
and baseline 
income. 

20

Financial provision has 
been made to cover the 
risk of current appeals, 
collection rates and 
growth

12 3 4

We are in the same position 
as last quarter on this risk as it
 remains slightly elevated this 
quarter due to the appeal that 
has been lodged by NHS 
services who want to see a 
reduction in the amount of 
business rates they have to 
pay ongoing and still 
progressing. Once complete 
the impact of this risk will be 
evaluated once the decision 
has been made.

P
age 19



Title Description Original
Assessment Controls/Mitigation Current Risk

Score Impact Likeli-
hood

Trend
(last
qtr)

Latest Note

Failure to
maximise
trading
opportunitie
s

Failure to maximise 
trading opportunities
 could result in lack 
of commercial 
exploitation of 
assets or income 
from trading arms 

9

Governance is in place 
for MTFP through EMT,
finance board and
Performance Risk and
Audit Board which 
monitor the work towards
maximising trading 
opportunities

12 4 3

Commercial Trading 
opportunities are being 
identified where possible and 
looked at accordingly, Assets 
are currently an area of focus 
within the council where we 
are identifying and exploring 
further areas for commercial 
trading.

General
Data
Protection
Regulation
Implementat
ion

With the 
implementation of 
the General Data 
Protection 
Regulation, which 
replaces the Data 
Protection Action of 
1998, there is a risk
 that the council will
 not manage its 
data appropriately 
and in line with the 
new regulations.

16

Monthly meetings of the 
statutory information 
group have highlighted 
areas which need to be 
addressed and training 
was delivered in 
September for managers 
and proposed service 
Data Protection leads.

12 4 3

Work is still underway relating 
to GDPR but a lot of progress 
has been made - especially in 
preparing policies & 
procedures, and in preparing 
privacy notices and the 
information assets register. We
 continue to monitor any data 
breaches/incidents or near 
misses and these are reported
 to management, we also 
continue to promote and train 
best practice when it comes to
 data protection and 
regulations. We have also 
agreed a formal audit to 
commence in December 2018.

P
age 20



Title Description Original
Assessment Controls/Mitigation Current Risk

Score Impact Likeli-
hood

Trend
(last
qtr)

Latest Note

Impact of
Homelessne
ss
Reduction
Act

The implementation 
of the new act 
places additional 
burdens on SHDC 
which may mean a 
reduced ability 
within the service to
 adhere to the act 
due to an 
unpredictable 
increase of persons 
approaching the 
housing options 
service. Capacity 
may be impacted by
 increased volumes 
of homeless 
applications, 
increased time 
needed to manage 
each case in order 
to fulfil the 
requirements of the 
new legislation and 
risk that the 
expansion of the 
duty could lead to a
 serious shortfall in 
available temporary 
housing options to 
accommodate 
homeless 
individuals and 
families 

12

•  Implementation of 
specialist Jigsaw 
Software to case manage
 under provisions of HRA
 2017 
•  Increase in 
establishment of Housing
 Options Officer in SHDC
 as part of Place Review 
•  Additional experienced 
temporary staff from 
February 2018 to triage 
cases 
•  Increase of admin 
support to Housing 
Options Team to better 
utilise specialist staff to 
focus on complex cases 
•  Training in new duties 
to be ongoing (initial joint 
SHDC/BDC training held 
in January 2018) 
•  Utilisation of £62k New
 Burdens funding 
•  Identification of options
 within SHDC stock 
•  Identification of private 
sector options within both
 districts 
•  Work with partners to 
open other potential 
options 

12 3 4

The risk continues to be 
reviewed on an ongoing basis 
by the Housing Options 
Manager. The numbers of 
applicants remains consistent -
 the shortfalls in team capacity
are being addressed initially 
through temporary staff and 
now through a permanent 
replacement and two fixed 
term appointments. 
 
The processes have been 
updated and the speed in 
handling cases through these 
is improving as front line 
operational staff have adapted 
and built the appropriate 
networks. The risk level has 
not changed

P
age 21



Title Description Original
Assessment Controls/Mitigation Current Risk

Score Impact Likeli-
hood

Trend
(last
qtr)

Latest Note

Critical
breach of
ICT security

Attacks are 
happening with 
increasing 
frequency at 
present. Ransom 
and theft specialists
 are targeting 
banking details and 
personal 
information, as with 
all other 
government 
systems and private
 companies 

25

There is a 
comprehensive suite of 
protection measures in 
place including email 
filtering, web filtering, 
antivirus and windows 
updates which help to 
protect from viruses

10 5 2

CPBS on behalf of its clients 
continues its vigilance.  In 
order to keep abreast of the 
latest threats, ICT subscribe to
 various Security related 
bulletins, such as SANS / 
CESG / WARP. 
 
Following on from intelligence 
received in the last quarter 
regarding cyber security 
threats from Russian hackers 
there have been no further 
alerts or concerns in this area 
and all the appropriate 
mitigation has taken place.  
This has allowed for a 
downgrade of the likelihood. 
 
The introduction of a 
dedicated Security Analyst role
 will help CPBS continue to 
develop new standards and 
processes to combat the 
increasing threats from cyber 
attacks. 
 
The business approved ICT 
maintenance windows also 
play a critical role in allowing 
ICT time to implement any 
necessary improvements and 
updates. 
 
Whilst a security breach will 
always be a possibility is 
today's environment, SHDC 
have a level of defence in 
depth which operates levels of 
security from the perimeter to 
the end user devices.  It 
should be confident of the 
considerable investment and 
enhancements made in this 
area over previous years.  The
 impact of any such breach will
 always remain high/critical 

P
age 22



Title Description Original
Assessment Controls/Mitigation Current Risk

Score Impact Likeli-
hood

Trend
(last
qtr)

Latest Note

Staff
recruitment
and
retention at
all levels
within the
organisatio
n

Staff recruitment 
and retention issues
 could undermine 
the effectiveness of 
the organisations 
though loss of 
experience and 
knowledge 

15

The mitigation for key 
senior posts that are 
vacant or serving their 
notice period will be to 
start recruitment and find 
suitable interim cover.  

9 3 3
Staff Turnover reduced in June
 and July with only 3 leavers in
 the period with two of these 
being age retirements. 

Impact of
County
Council
Budget
Reductions

Impact of County 
Council Budget 
Reductions. This 
will potentially 
impact on resident 
wellbeing. 

9

Ensure that Place 
directorate are involved 
early in conversations to 
represent the council and
 its residents

9 3 3

County council budgets 
continue to be under severe 
pressure and we continue to 
monitor this but we do not feel 
the current risk score needs to
 change,

Failure to
deliver
financial &
non-
financial
outcomes
of the
approved
Welland
Homes
business
plan

Failure to deliver 
financial & non-
financial outcomes 
of the approved 
business plan has 
implication in areas 
which include Legal,
 reputational and 
Financial. Risk also 
refers to capacity 
and expertise in the
 organsation to 
deliver the housing 
development 
requirement for both
 the HRA and 
Welland Homes.

8

Mitigations as follows; 
• Revised governance 
including strengthened 
terms of reference. 
• Improved 
communication on 
Council policies to the 
WH Board. 
• Increased operational 
capability and capacity 
within Council to support 
future programmes and 
WH Board of Directors. 
• Permanent Housing 
Development programme
 manager 
• Positive Audit 
• Established 
methodology for 
assessing schemes 

9 3 3

There is no need to change 
the score for this quarter as 
we continue to deliver to the 
business plan and all areas 
are progressing, as the 
business plan continues to be 
delivered we will need to 
review this risk.

P
age 23



Title Description Original
Assessment Controls/Mitigation Current Risk

Score Impact Likeli-
hood

Trend
(last
qtr)

Latest Note

Contracts
Monitoring

This risk covers the 
councils monitoring 
of contracts with 
external partners to 
ensure 
arrangements are 
financially secure 
and performing

16

.        Regular monitoring 
of contracts 
.        Regular 
communication with 
external partners and 
stakeholders 
Keep up to date with 
external changes with 
partners

9 3 3

The contracts team have 
sourced strategic supplier 
updates from central 
government which detail any 
changes in business strategy, 
financial stability or 
shareholder activity which 
could de-stabilise the 
companies. 
 
The team also ensure that all 
strategic contracts procured 
undergo through supplier 
appraisal before the award of 
contract, which can be 
refreshed on an annual basis 
where necessary. 
 
The likelihood of this 
happening on one of our major
 strategic contracts remains 
unchanged given recent 
financial issues in the sector 
for companies such as 
Carillion and Capita. The 
potential impact also remains 
the same.

P
age 24



Title Description Original
Assessment Controls/Mitigation Current Risk

Score Impact Likeli-
hood

Trend
(last
qtr)

Latest Note

CPBS
Failure to
deliver core
services

CPBS Failure to 
deliver core 
services - 
HR/IT/Finance/Reve
nues & Benefits 

12

Number of Governance
processes in place
including monitoring of
performance in
performance, risk and
audit baord. CPBS also
has its own board with
governance.

8 4 2

Regular meetings are being 
held with the Service heads at 
CPBS between both the client 
lead and service manager, to 
manage any performance 
issues. 
 
SLA's are currently being 
agreed for the current year. 
with 2019-20 SLA's being 
prepared 
 
Reviewed performance 
standards have been agreed 
and signed off for the coming 
year to align with the corporate
 plan. 
 
Most elements of the service is
 functional, however there 
have been a number of audit 
reports with low assurance and
 one with no assurance that 
give cause for concern, we 
continue to monitor this and 
address any issues that arise.

Failure to
effectively
implement
corporate
business
continuity
plan

Failure could lead to
 an impact on 
delivery of services,
 loss of IT systems, 
ineffective 
communication or a 
failure to provide 
suitable premises 

4

Working jointly with
County to have business
continuity post. Each
team has a plan reviewed
annually

6 3 2

All Business Impact 
Assessments and Emergency 
Plans are in draft or complete 
across the authority. The 
Emergency Planning Officer is 
working with Breckland's 
Emergency Planning Officer to
 ensure these are robust, that 
critical services areas are 
identified and then a Corporate
 business continuity plan is 
compiled. Training is to be 
identified and rolled out by the 
end of 2018 as are some table
 top exercises to ensure 
officers are fully equipped. 
 
 

P
age 25



Title Description Original
Assessment Controls/Mitigation Current Risk

Score Impact Likeli-
hood

Trend
(last
qtr)

Latest Note

Failure to
deliver the
council's
Corporate
Priorities

Would lead to 
missed targets and 
failure to deliver 
objectives and may 
result in the Council
 suffering 
reputational damage
 and a failure to 
deliver priorities to 
residents. 

4

Corporate Delivery Plan
sets out how to acheive
corporate plan and this is
under pinned by individual
service plans and these
are monitored at
Perfromance, Risk &
Audit Board monthly

4 2 2

We remain on track to deliver 
councils corporate priorities 
and the CIP team continues to
 work to monitor the progress 
against the corporate plan. 
This risk will be re-assessed 
once the new corporate 
priorities have been 
established as per the 
corporate plan refresh 
commencing at the start of 
next year.

Failure to
deliver
Local Plan
and its
Delivery
Plan

Failure to deliver 
Local Plan and its 
Delivery Plan - 
reputational and 
financial risk due to 
possible Secretary 
of State 
intervention. there is
 also a new risk 
emerging due to 
New Homes Bonus.
 

8
Dedicated senior officer
and EMT support to
deliver the local plan

3 3 1

The Local Plan modifications 
consultation were carried out 
during the summer and closed 
on 28th August. The Council is
 expecting to receive the 
Examiner's report in October 
which would allow the plan to 
be adopted before the end of 
the calendar year.  
 
In light of this significant 
progress since the last update,
 it is considered appropriate to 
lower the impact..

 

P
age 26



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Maxine O’Mahony – Executive Director of Strategy and Governance 

To: Governance and Audit Committee – 18 October 2018

Author: Ross Bangs - Corporate Improvement Manager 

Subject: Risk Management Policy 

Purpose: To seek formal adoption of the revised Risk Management policy into 
working practice. 

Recommendation: 

1) That the Governance and Audit Committee approves and adopts the Risk Management 
Policy 

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 Over the past two years the Governance and Audit Committee has provided guidance on 
a number of changes to the way that the Council manages and monitors risk. These 
changes have included: -

i. The adoption of a 5x5 risk matrix scoring grid for measuring the impact and 
likelihood of risks.

ii. The adoption of the use of risk targets or risk appetite to help identify the level of 
acceptable risk that the Council is prepare to work within and tolerate. This is an 
important measure to ensure that the Council is not inhibiting innovation by being 
excessively risk adverse.

iii. Amendments to the format of the Council’s Corporate Risk Register to make the 
ongoing management of risk clear. This has included the direction of travel 
compared to previous reporting periods and the original unmitigated risk score.

1.2 These changes have been developed over the past two years and adopted into the working 
practices of how the Council manages risk. As a result of this approach it would now be 
prudent to revise the Council’s formal risk management policy to ensure that it reflects 
these good practice amendments.

1.3 Appendix A of this document sets out the draft Risk Management Policy for the joint 
committee to discuss and recommend to The Governance and Audit Committee, and 

1.4 This policy does not make any change from how the Council is currently approaching risk 
management, it is simply seeking to formally adopt the current working practices of the 
Council into the policy.

1.5 The Policy was approved at a meeting of the joint scrutiny committees on the 4th October 
2018.  

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 To approve and adopt the revised Risk Management Policy into working practices. 

Page 27

Agenda Item 5.



2.2 Do nothing.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 This report is seeking the committee’s approval for the policy to be formally adopted into 
working practise. 

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 By formal adopting the current working practices relating to how the Council approaches 
risk management it will ensure that there is a robust framework to work within. This 
framework will provide assurance that risks are appropriately managed but do not inhibit 
innovation.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues; Constitutional 
& Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Equality & Diversity/Human 
Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk Management; Safeguarding; 
Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Transformation Programme; Other. 
Where the report author considers that there may be implications under one or more of 
these headings, these are identified below.

5.1 Constitution & Legal

5.1.1 The constitution sets out the legal requirement for the Council to have a formal approach to 
how it manages risk. The constitution delegates power to the Governance and Audit 
Committee to monitor strategic risks.

5.2 Corporate Priorities

5.2.1 A robust yet flexible approach to risk management is fundamental to enabling the Council 
achieving its corporate priorities as set out in the Council’s corporate plan

5.3 Financial

5.3.1 The risk management policy will influence how the Council manages its financial 
requirements in an appropriate way.

5.4 Reputation 

5.4.1 The risk management policy helps identify potential impacts on the Council’s reputation and 
helps to mitigate these by the adoption of controls to reduce or prevent their impact.

5.5 Risk Management 

5.5.1 The risk management policy sets out the approach to how the Council manages risk 
throughout all aspects of its business. 

5.6 Consultation

5.6.1 This is the first committee stage of consultation prior to submission to the Governance and 
Audit Committee

Page 28



6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 NA

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 NA

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Ross Bangs – Corporate Improvement Manager
Telephone Number: 07870 835233
Email: ross.bangs@breckland-sholland.gov.uk 

Key Decision: No 

Exempt Decision: No 

This report refers to a Mandatory Service

Appendices attached to this report: 
Appendix A Draft Risk Management Policy

Page 29

mailto:charlotte.panie@breckland-sholland.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 19                                                                                                                 May DraftV3

RISK

MANAGEMENT

FRAMEWORK
Date of Policy: July 2018

Author: Greg Pearson, Corporate Improvement & 
Performance Manager

Document Status Draft 3
Next Review Date: January 2020

Page 31



Page 2 of 19                                                                                                                 May DraftV3

Table of Contents

Number Heading        Page  
                    
1.  Introduction ................................................................................................................4

2.  Background ................................................................................................................4

3.                       Definition .....................................................................................................................5

4.                       Organisation ...............................................................................................................5

5.                       Arrangements ............................................................................................................6

6.                       Corporate Governance .............................................................................................8

7.  Leadership and Responsibility ................................................................................8

8.  Training .......................................................................................................................8

9.  Resourcing Risk Management ................................................................................9

10. Role of the Performance, Risk and Audit Board ..................................................9

11. Risk Management Role in the Governance and Audit Committee ...................9

12. Risk Identification ...................................................................................................10

13. Involvement of Other Related Groups.................................................................10

14. External Contacts ...................................................................................................10

15. Partnerships ............................................................................................................11

16. Methodology ...........................................................................................................11

17. Risk Appetite (Targets)..........................................................................................12

18. Risk Management Approach ................................................................................12

19. Reviews ...................................................................................................................12

Appendix One   Shared Leadership – Role and Responsibilities ............................................13

Appendix Two   Risk Scoring Maxtrix and Criteria...................................................................16

Page 32



Page 3 of 19                                                                                                                 May DraftV3

1. Introduction

The fundamental principles adopted by the Council on Risk Management are 
described in the policy statement and procedure as set out in this document. 
Adopting and implementing the framework detailed will achieve compliance 
with the policy.

2. Background

Councils face a wide variety of risks including physical risks to people or 
property, financial loss, failure of service delivery, information management 
and damage to reputation. Risk for this purpose is defined as "the possibility 
of an event occurring that will have an impact on the achievement of 
objectives, reputation, or service delivery".

Good risk management is a key tool in assisting a Council to manage 
uncertainty in order to enable it to better achieve its corporate objectives. Risk 
management is intended to be a planned and systematic approach to the 
identification, assessment and management of the risks facing the Council. It 
is essential that steps are taken to effectively manage those risks. Risk 
management supports innovative solutions as it carefully considers the 
benefits, alongside the risks, that may occur.  

The traditional means of protecting against the more obvious risks has been 
through insurance.  However, there are many risks which cannot be insured 
against and which must be addressed in different ways. Even in the case of 
those risks which are insurable, action should be taken to reduce the potential 
risks with consequent savings of premiums and disruption of work.

Page 33



Page 4 of 19                                                                                                                 May DraftV3

Policy Statement

3. Definition 

We define risk as the possibility of an event occurring that will have an impact 
on the achievement of objectives, reputation, financial or service delivery.  
The appraisal and management of risk will be part of our business planning, 
project management and change management process as well as how we 
effectively manage our working partnerships.
It is the responsibility of every officer and elected member to take an active 
role in the identification and appropriate management of risk across the 
Council.
We will use risk management to promote innovation as well as to help secure 
our objectives. This will be achieved through the appropriate use of risk 
appetites.

4. Organisation
This risk management strategy will be subject to endorsement by the 
Governance and Audit Committee. 
The Director of Strategy and Governance is responsible for risk management.  
The Corporate Improvement and Performance Team (CIP) will support the 
Director of Strategy and Governance in assessing risks likely to have a 
significant impact on the achievement of the Council’s objectives. 
All officers and elected members in South Holland are responsible for risk 
management and the breakdown of responsibilities are detailed further in 
Appendix One. Some of those responsibilities include: 

 All officers must be aware of their roles and responsibilities in risk 
management.

 All Senior Managers will implement risk management within their 
service.

 Risk assessments will be carried out as a routine part of service 
planning and management activities.

 The Corporate Improvement and Performance Team are to be 
notified of any significant changes or if a risk materialises to enable 
them to ensure that appropriate and adequate mitigations are in place 
and recorded. 

 The Director of Strategy and Governance and the Director of Growth 
and Commercialisation are to be informed if financing measures are 
required to be put in place.

 A risk culture will be built across the department that does not inhibit 
the Council in continuing to be innovative.

Page 34



Page 5 of 19                                                                                                                 May DraftV3

 Key risks to service objectives, projects, partnerships and change 
management processes under their control are identified, recorded 
and managed on the Council’s performance management system.

 Those risks that have a corporate impact are to be considered for 
inclusion in the Strategic Risk Register.

The Director of Strategy and Governance is responsible for coordinating the 
Council’s approach to risk management. The Corporate Improvement and 
Performance Team is responsible for monitoring the effectiveness of this risk 
management strategy and for reviewing compliance with controls introduced 
to manage risks.
The process seeks to contribute to the Council’s emerging three lines of 
defence approach to assurance. In this model Risk Management would be 
recognised as a second line of defence and would contribute towards the 
Council’s overall levels of assurance.  
The Institute of Internal Auditors and the Institute of Directors endorse the 
'Three Lines of Defence' model as a way of explaining the relationship 
between Council functions and as a guide to how responsibilities should be 
divided:

 the first line of defence – functions that own and manage risk

 the second line of defence – functions that oversee or specialise in risk 
management, compliance

 the third line of defence – functions that provide independent 
assurance, above all internal audit.

Page 35



Page 6 of 19                                                                                                                 May DraftV3

5. Arrangements

Reports to Committees will include an appraisal of all associated risks and 
their implications.

Corporate risks will be identified and:

 assessed for likelihood and impact

 mitigating controls identified and recorded

 allocated a responsible officer for the mitigating controls

 cost implications of controls considered

Risk Management training will be provided to senior managers with the aim of 
ensuring that they have the skills necessary to identify, appraise and control 
the risks associated with the services they provide. elected members will 
receive training on risk so that they can consider the implications of risk in 
their work for the Council.

Every partnership, project team or change management team will appraise 
strategic and operational risks and make provision for dealing with those risks 
appropriately. This will be done in a way that does not prevent innovation or 
opportunity, such as income generation. An example of this would be 
ensuring that the purchase of commercial property is not inhibited due to any 
perceived aversion to risk.   

Page 36



Page 7 of 19                                                                                                                 May DraftV3

Procedure

6. Corporate Governance

Effective risk management is an essential element of good corporate 
governance which, in turn, supports effective decision making and ultimately 
contributes to improved performance and providing assurance.

The risk management framework aims to:

 clarify responsibilities for identifying and managing risks
 ensure that an appropriate level of risk management is consistently 

applied across the Council
 increase awareness and use of risk management as a normal element of 

service management and improvement
 facilitate sharing of experience and good practice across the Council
 act as a second line of defence in the Council’s three lines of defence 

assurance model
 embed the concept of risk management in the Council and ensure that 

accurate and relevant statements are made in the Annual Governance 
Statement

7. Leadership and Responsibility

Given the diversity of Council services and the wide range of potential risks, it 
is essential that responsibility for identifying and taking action to address 
potential risks is clear. 

Responsibility for effective risk management rests with every officer and 
elected member of the Council.

The Chief Executive Officer is the officer with overall responsibility for 
ensuring adherence to the Council’s policy on Risk Management. 

The framework of roles and responsibilities in Appendix One shows how 
these are allocated. 

8. Training

Individual officers and members will have different needs and these can be 
met with different methods.  These will include appropriate awareness raising 
sessions as well as more formal training. External providers will be identified 
to deliver specific training and, where appropriate, in house training will be 
used.

Page 37



Page 8 of 19                                                                                                                 May DraftV3

9. Resourcing Risk Management

Risk management is not a new issue and every member and officer is 
responsible for considering risk implications as they relate to the actions of 
their day to day work. However, it is recognised that the concept of risk 
management needs to become formalised and part and parcel of the culture 
of the Council. 

At Executive Management Team level, the Director of Strategy and 
Governance is the designated risk champion.

The Corporate Improvement and Performance Team will be the link for all 
aspects of risk management.

10. Role of the Performance, Risk and Audit Board

Whilst acknowledging the wide variety of risks that face the Council, and the 
differing circumstances that apply in different services, it is essential that there 
is some consistency in the way that risks are identified and assessed. This 
helps to ensure that all areas of risk are adequately considered and relative 
priorities for action can be judged.

The Performance, Risk and Audit Board will provide this consistency of 
approach. The Board will act as a link between project managers, specialised 
groups dealing with particular areas of risk, senior management and elected 
members. The Board will review updates on both corporate and operational 
risks on a quarterly basis and take any remedial actions necessary; including 
escalation to the Executive Management Team and the Governance and 
Audit Committee as appropriate.

Quarterly updates on the Strategic Risk Register will be provided to the 
Executive Management Team and the Governance and Audit Committee.

11. Risk Management Role in the Governance and Audit Committee

The Governance and Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the 
arrangements in place for the identification, monitoring and management of 
strategic risk.

To provide the Governance and Audit Committee with the necessary 
information to undertake these responsibilities, progress updates on the 
Strategic Risk Register are reported quarterly at Governance and Audit 
Committee meetings.

Page 38



Page 9 of 19                                                                                                                 May DraftV3

12. Risk Identification

To meet the requirements of this framework, risks must be capable of being 
identified at any level, and by anybody, within the Council. 

All officers will be responsible for identifying risks and ensuring that these are 
recorded and managed through the Council’s corporate performance system. 
Service managers and team leaders will have overall responsibility for 
ensuring that all risks relating to their service area are identified, recorded, 
mitigated and managed. These will include key risks to service objectives, 
projects, partnerships and change management processes under their service 
area. 

Service/Operational risks will be included as an agenda item on Performance, 
Risk and Audit Board meetings quarterly. The purpose of this is to review 
whether any further mitigation is required, whether additions, deletions or any 
other changes need to be made. Where an operational risk retains a high risk 
score despite mitigation for three quarterly reporting periods it will be 
escalated to become a strategic risk.

Any risk can, if appropriate, be escalated to being a strategic risk through the 
Director of Strategy & Governance, Corporate Improvement and Performance 
Team and the Executive Management Team.

The Strategic Risk Register will be reviewed on a quarterly basis and updated 
to reflect any changes to the risks currently included and to include any new 
risks identified. Currently reported strategic risks which are identified as 
needing to be changed to operational or no longer a risk as fully mitigated, will 
be removed from the strategic register following the report to the Governance 
and Audit Committee that advises of the decision to demote or remove.

13. Involvement of Other Related Groups

The Council’s Internal Audit function, as the third line of defence, also 
contribute to the management of risk. The work of Internal Audit is based on a 
needs and risk assessment process that identifies and focuses resources on 
higher risk areas. Audit findings are reported to the relevant Director and 
Senior Manager together with recommendations for improvement and an 
action plan. Checks are undertaken by Internal Audit and the Corporate 
Improvement & Performance Team to ensure agreed recommendations are 
implemented.

14. External Contacts

The potential risks faced by the Council are, in many cases, similar to those 
faced by other authorities and it is practical and cost effective to learn from the 
experience of others. In order to share risk management information and 
experiences, the Council has established networks with other authorities and 

Page 39



Page 10 of 19                                                                                                                 May DraftV3

agencies. 

15. Partnerships

A Partnership Policy is available and outlines the Council’s approach to 
assessing risks for partnerships. The policy explains the steps that should be 
taken to assess risks before the decision is made to enter into a partnership 
and also how to undertake ongoing monitoring of risk once a partnership has 
been established. The matrix for partnership risks is set out in appendix two of 
this document.

16. Methodology

A methodology for identifying, assessing and managing risk within the Council 
has been developed. This methodology has the advantage of being relatively 
straightforward to use and can be applied to both the strategic risks of the 
Council and as part of the routine service, project planning and change 
management processes (operational risks). 

Once a risk has been identified it is essential to determine the level of impact 
and likelihood. The impact and likelihood criteria are set out in Appendix 2.

The Strategic Risk Register is held by the Corporate Improvement and 
Performance Team and published through the Council’s corporate 
performance system. The format of the register is as below:

Title Description
Original 
Score Controls/ 

Mitigation

Current 
Risk 

Score
Impact Likeli- 

hood

Trend 
(last 
quarter)

Latest 
Note

Latest 
Update 
Date

Target 
Impact

Target 
Likeli-
hood

The table below sets out an explanation of each of the fields contained within 
the Corporate Risk register: -

Title Title of Risk
Description Description of the risk before mitigation
Original score This is the original risk score (Impact x Likelihood)
Controls/Mitigation This is the mitigating actions and controls put in place to 

reduce the risk
Current Risk Score This is the risk score at the present time with the mitigations 

included
Impact This is the current risk impact score (see Appendix 2)
Likelihood This is the current risk Likelihood score (see Appendix 2)
Trend (last quarter) This highlights the direction of travel compared to the 

previous quarter
Latest Note This provides details on latest actions taken
Latest Update Date This is the date the latest update was provided
Target Impact This is the target impact score that the Council has deemed 

to be acceptable for this risk (see Appendix 2)
Target Likelihood This is the target likelihood score that the Council has 

Page 40



Page 11 of 19                                                                                                                 May DraftV3

deemed to be acceptable for this risk (see Appendix 2)

17. Risk Appetite (Targets)

Risk appetite refers to the Council’s attitude towards risk, which in turn 
dictates the amount of risk that it considers acceptable. As a result, risk 
appetite refers to our willingness to tolerate a particular level of exposure to 
specific risks. The appetite is also a function of our capacity to bear risk which 
should not be exceeded.

18. Risk Management Approach

The development of a consistent corporate approach to risk management 
needs to be done in a methodical and proportionate way in order to avoid the 
creation of a self-defeating bureaucratic burden.

To ensure that risk management is handled in the most efficient way within 
the Council, risk is included as part of the corporate planning process and the 
Council’s performance framework to ensure the quick identification emerging 
risks and changes to identified risks.

The following chart (from bottom up) shows how a risk could be identified and 
escalated:

Strategic Risk Register Executive Management Team 
↑

Service/Operational Risk Register Service Manager adds via CIP
↑

Evaluate and decide action Service Manager
↑

Risk identified All Officers & Elected Members

19. Reviews

The Framework will be reviewed by the Governance and Audit Committee on 
an 18 month basis and published on the South Holland intranet and internet. 
The Strategic Risk Register will be reviewed by the Executive Management 
Team on a quarterly basis and the Governance and Audit Committee a 
minimum of every three months and published through the Council’s 
corporate performance system.

Page 41



Page 12 of 19                                                                                                                 May DraftV3

APPENDIX ONE     

Shared Leadership – Role and Responsibilities

Everyone has a role to play in an integrated risk management framework. 
Combining shared leadership with a team approach will help contribute to its 
ultimate success. Roles identified at present are:

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

Responsibilities include:

 Approving the Risk Management Framework which includes the Risk 
Management Policy and Strategy.

 Providing proactive leadership and direction on Risk Management 
Governance issues and champion Risk Management throughout the 
Council.

 Receiving progress reports on the Strategic Risk Register at least 
quarterly.

 Monitoring that an adequate risk management framework and 
associated control environment is in place.

 Monitoring arrangements for the identification, monitoring and 
management of strategic risks within the Council

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Responsibilities include:

 Promoting Risk Management and its benefits throughout the Council.

 Overall responsibility for securing adherence to the Council’s Policy on 
Risk Management.

 Appointing a Director to take responsibility for risk management.

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT TEAM (EMT)

Responsibilities include:

 Considering risks attached to proposals for new / changing policies and 
service delivery arrangements.

 Ensuring that this framework is applied throughout all areas of the 
Council.

Page 42



Page 13 of 19                                                                                                                 May DraftV3

 Receiving progress reports on the risk reduction programme and 
propose revisions to the Strategic Risk Register.

 Supporting the Director of Strategy and Governance in assessing risks 
likely to have a significant impact on the achievement of the Council’s 
objectives.  

DIRECTOR OF STRATEGY AND GOVERNANCE

Responsibilities include:

 Assessing risks likely to have a significant impact on the achievement 
of the Council’s objectives.

 Coordinating the Council’s approach to risk management. 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Responsibilities include:

 Implementing risk management within their services.

 Identifying, recording and managing key risks to service objectives, 
project, partnership and change management processes under their 
control are identified.

 Ensuring their managers carry out risk assessments as a routine part 
of service planning and management activities.

 Ensuring any risks that have a corporate impact are reported for 
consideration for inclusion in Strategic Risk Register.

 Building a risk aware culture across the department, through all 
officers.

CORPORATE IMPROVEMENT AND PERFORMANCE TEAM

Responsibilities include:

 Monitoring the implementation and effectiveness of this risk 
management strategy and for reviewing compliance with controls 
introduced to manage risks.

 Coordinating risk management activity across the Council.

 Reporting on risk management activity to EMT and members.

 Maintaining a corporate strategic risk register and liaise with Service 
Managers relating to operational risks.

Page 43



Page 14 of 19                                                                                                                 May DraftV3

 Providing risk management training for officers and elected members, 
appropriate to their needs and responsibilities.

 Providing advice and assistance as required.

 Reviewing the Risk Management Framework on an 18 month basis.

SENIOR MANAGERS

Responsibilities include:

 Developing action plans in relation to corporate strategic risks as they 
relate to their service area.

 Identifying risks attached to proposals for new / changed policies and 
service delivery arrangements.

 Assisting with the identification and recording of all key risks to 
services, projects, partnerships and change management processes.

ALL OFFICERS

Responsibilities include:

 Maintaining an awareness of risk management principles and take 
responsibility for identifying and managing risk within their own working 
environment.

 Applying risk management to those risks requiring further action, 
particularly new developments and project work.

INTERNAL AUDIT

Internal Audit reports to management on the Council’s performance under the 
Risk Management Framework and the adequacy and effectiveness of 
systems of risk management.

EXTERNAL AUDIT

External Audit reports to Senior Management on the Council’s performance 
on risk management.

ELLECTED MEMBERS

Elected members are responsible for identifying the risks they become aware 
of in the course of their activities as members, and ensuring such risks are 
appropriately recorded.

Page 44



Page 15 of 19                                                                                                                 January DraftV2

APPENDIX TWO

RISK SCORING CRITERIA AND MATRIX

Likelihood:

Likelihood score 1 2 3 4 5

Definition Rare Unlikely Possible Likely Almost certain

Description The likelihood 
of the risk has 
been minimised 
to a negligible 
possibility

The risk is 
technically 
possible but an 
occurrence is 
not foreseeable 
in the medium-
long term

The risk is a real 
possibility but 
the likelihood of 
an occurrence in 
the short-
medium term is 
small

The risk is 
probably going 
to occur at 
some point in 
the medium 
term, possibly 
sooner

The risk is 
probably going 
to occur 
imminently

Timeframe Will occur at 
some point in 
next 50 years

Will occur at 
some point in 
the next 25 
years

Will occur at 
some point in 
the next 10 
years

Will occur at 
some point in 
the next 5 
years

Will occur at 
some point in 
the next year

Probability 10% or less Between 10-30% Between 30-
50%

Between 50-
85%

85% or more

Where the probability and timing score differently, a judgement should be made as to the correct likelihood score.

P
age 45



Page 16 of 19                                                                                                                 January DraftV2

Impact
Strategic Risks

Impact score 1 2 3 4 5
Title Minimal Low Medium High Critical

Political risk Authority fails to 
effectively scrutinise its 
decisions

No scrutiny of decisions 
takes place

Scrutiny process publicly 
questioned or criticised

Resignation of Leader, 
Cabinet Member, Chief 
Executive or Director

Authority placed in 
special measures, DCLG 
appoints administrators

Reputation risk Negative national press 
coverage for one day, 
ongoing negative local 
coverage

Negative national press 
coverage for more than 
one day, 

Negative national press 
coverage for more than one 
week, public criticism from 
local partners

Public criticism from MP, 
LGA, DCLG, County Council 
or other national body

International negative 
press coverage

Financial risk Up to 1% of authority 
budget

Up to 5% of authority 
budget

Up to 10% of authority budget Up to 15% of authority 
budget

Over 15% of authority 
budget

Legal risk Authorities’ actions’ 
legality repeatedly 
questioned in public

Council decisions 
overturned

Damages or similar claim 
sought against authority

Multiple damages claims 
sought against authority

Authority in breach of 
law, criminal charges 
brought

Disruption risk Total service outage for 
one day or less

Total service outage for 
several days

Total service outage for more 
than a week

Total service outage for 
more than three weeks

Multiple services 
unable to operate

Environmental risk Short term damage in an 
isolated area requiring 
partners assistance

Long term damage in an 
isolated area requiring 
partners assistance

Damage requiring special 
budget provision to rectify

Major or widespread 
damage requiring central 
government assistance

Permanent 
environmental damage 
with significant impact

Contractual risk Major contract 
renegotiation required

Service reduction 
dictated by contractor’s 
ability to operate

Service provision significantly 
altered or sanction clauses 
invoked

Contracted service failure 
and/or termination of 
contract

Abrupt contracted 
service failure without 
contingency

Asset & Infrastructure 
risk

Isolated network issues, 
multiple pieces of 
equipment needing 
replacement

Widespread network 
issues, key vehicle 
damaged

Council facilities inaccessible, 
key vehicle needs replacing

Council facilities damaged, 
multiple vehicles need 
replacing, key 
infrastructure outage

Council facilities 
destroyed, key 
infrastructure 
destroyed

Health and Safety risk Individual receives minor 
injuries 

Multiple people receive 
minor injuries

Individual serious injury Multiple people seriously 
injured, individual loss of 
life or criminal assault

Multiple losses of life, 
widespread criminal 
assault

P
age 46



Page 17 of 19                                                                                                                 January DraftV2

Project risk impacts
Impact score 1 2 3 4 5
Title Minimal Low Medium High Critical

Political risk Residents unaware of 
authority’s actions

Residents’ access to 
oppose actions limited

Residents’ access to 
oppose actions process 
blocked

Authority fails to 
effectively scrutinise its 
actions

No scrutiny of actions 
takes place

Reputation risk Increased complaints for 
less than one week

Increased complaints for 
more than one week

Negative local press 
coverage for one day, 
increased complaints for 
more than one week

Negative national press 
coverage for one day, 
ongoing negative local 
coverage

Negative national press 
coverage over several 
days. Public criticism from 
MP, LGA, County Council 
or national service body

Financial risk Up to 1% of project budget Up to 5% of project 
budget

Up to 10% of project 
budget

Up to 15% of project 
budget

Over 15% of project 
budget

Legal risk Delays due to legal 
clarifications being sought 
(<1 month)

Delays due to legal 
clarifications being sought 
(1-6 months)

Delays due to legal 
clarifications being sought 
(>6 months)

Project operations 
potentially subject to 
legal challenge, project on 
hold until resolved

Project operations 
potentially in breach of 
legislation, project 
terminated

Disruption risk Individual officers having 
work disrupted 

Multiple officers unable 
to work

Total service outage for 
one day or less

Total service outage for 
several days

Total service outage for 
more than a week

Environmental risk Immediately remedied 
damage in an isolated area

Easily remedied damage 
in an isolated area

Short term damage in an 
isolated area requiring 
partners assistance

Damage requiring special 
budget provision to 
rectify

Major or widespread 
damage requiring central 
government assistance

Contractual risk Negative impact on key 
partner relationship

Minor contract 
renegotiation required

Major contract 
renegotiation required

Project aims or goal 
significantly altered or 
sanction clauses invoked

Project failure and/or 
termination of contract

Asset & Infrastructure 
risk

Individual pieces of 
equipment damaged or 
needing replacement

Isolated network issues, 
multiple pieces of 
equipment needing 
replacement

Widespread network 
issues, vehicle damaged

Council properties 
inaccessible, vehicle need 
replacing

Council properties 
damaged, multiple 
vehicles need replacing, 
key infrastructure outage

Health and Safety risk People engaging in 
hazardous activities 
without awareness

Individual receives minor 
injuries 

Multiple people receive 
minor injuries

Individual serious injury Multiple people seriously 
injured, individual loss of 
life

P
age 47



Page 18 of 19                                                                                                                 January DraftV2

Partnership risk impacts
Impact score 1 2 3 4 5
Title Minimal Low Medium High Critical

Political risk Residents unaware of 
partnership actions

Residents’ access to 
oppose actions limited

Residents’ access to 
oppose actions process 
blocked

Partnership fails to 
effectively scrutinise its 
actions

No scrutiny of actions 
takes place

Reputation risk Increased complaints for 
less than one week

Increased complaints for 
more than one week

Negative local press 
coverage for one day, 
increased complaints for 
more than one week

Negative national press 
coverage for one day, 
ongoing negative local 
coverage

Negative national press 
coverage over several 
days. Public criticism 
from partners

Financial risk Council’s contribution 
<£15,000

Council’s contribution 
£15,000-£50,000

Council’s contribution 
£50,000-£100,000

Council’s contribution 
£100,000-£200,000

Council’s contribution 
>£200,000

Legal risk Lack of clarity in terms of 
liability <£15,000

Lack of clarity in terms of 
liability £15,000-£50,000

Lack of clarity in terms of 
liability £50,000-£100,000

Lack of clarity in terms of 
liability £100,000-
£200,000

Lack of clarity in terms of 
liability >£200,000

Disruption risk Partnership arrangements 
create delays

Partnership 
arrangements create 
minor delays

Partnership arrangements 
create significant delays

Partnership arrangements 
limit operational freedom

Partnership fails, key 
shared resources lost

Environmental risk Immediately remedied 
damage in an isolated 
area

Easily remedied damage 
in an isolated area

Short term damage in an 
isolated area requiring 
partners assistance

Damage requiring special 
budget provision to rectify

Major or widespread 
damage requiring central 
government assistance

Contractual risk Negative impact on 
partnership relationship

Minor contract 
renegotiation required

Major contract 
renegotiation required

Partnership purpose 
significantly altered or 
sanction clauses invoked

Partnership failure 
and/or termination of 
contract

Asset & Infrastructure risk Individual pieces of 
equipment damaged or 
needing replacement

Isolated network issues, 
multiple pieces of 
equipment needing 
replacement

Widespread network 
issues, partnership 
connections unreliable

Partnership properties 
inaccessible, online 
resources compromised

Partnership properties 
damaged, key 
infrastructure outage

Health and Safety risk People engaging in 
hazardous activities 
without awareness

Individual receives minor 
injuries 

Multiple people receive 
minor injuries

Individual serious injury Multiple people seriously 
injured, individual loss of 
life

P
age 48



Page 19 of 19                                                                                                                 January DraftV2

Operational risk impacts
Impact score 1 2 3 4 5
Title Minimal Low Medium High Critical

Political risk Residents unaware of 
decision-making process

Residents’ access to 
decision-making process 
limited

Residents’ access to 
decision-making process 
blocked

Decisions not published Authority fails to 
effectively scrutinise its 
decisions

Reputation risk Increased complaints 
for less than one week

Increased complaints for 
more than one week

Increased complaints in 
for other services as 
problems cause a backlog

Complaints not being 
heeded, generating 
further complaints

Negative local press 
coverage for one day, 
increased complaints for 
more than one quarter

Financial risk Up to 1% of service 
budget

Up to 5% of service 
budget

Up to 10% of service 
budget

Up to 15% of service 
budget

Over 15% of service 
budget

Legal risk Authorities’ actions’ 
legality questioned in 
public

Authorities’ actions’ 
legality repeatedly 
questioned in public

Council decisions legally 
challenged

Council decisions 
overturned

Damages or similar claim 
sought against authority

Disruption risk Individual officers 
having work disrupted 

Multiple officers unable 
to work

Total service outage for 
one day or less

Total service outage for 
several days

Total service outage for 
more than a week

Environmental risk Immediately remedied 
damage in an isolated 
area

Easily remedied damage 
in an isolated area

Short term damage in an 
isolated area requiring 
partners assistance

Long term damage in an 
isolated area requiring 
partners assistance

Damage requiring special 
budget provision to 
rectify

Contractual risk Negative impact on 
supplier/client 
relationship

Minor contract 
renegotiation required

Major contract 
renegotiation required

Service reduction dictated 
by contractor’s ability to 
operate

Service provision 
significantly altered or 
sanction clauses invoked

Asset & Infrastructure risk Individual pieces of 
equipment damaged or 
needing replacement

Isolated network issues, 
multiple pieces of 
equipment needing 
replacement

Widespread network 
issues, vehicle damaged

Council properties 
inaccessible, vehicle need 
replacing

Council properties 
damaged, multiple 
vehicles need replacing, 
key infrastructure outage

Health and Safety risk People engaging in 
hazardous activities 
without awareness

Individual receives minor 
injuries 

Multiple people receive 
minor injuries

Individual serious injury Multiple people seriously 
injured, individual loss of 
life

[Risk impacts do not need to match the descriptions above exactly, the category cells’ descriptions provide examples of risks to give context to each score]

P
age 49



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 51

Agenda Item 6.



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



Report of: Head of Internal Audit for South Holland DC 

To: Governance and Audit Committee 18 October 2018

Author: Emma Hodds, Head of Internal Audit

Subject: Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity

Purpose: This report examines the progress made between 1 April 2018 and 1 October 
2018 in relation to the completion of the Annual Internal Audit Plan for 
2018/19.

Recommendation(s): 

1) That members note the completion of the internal audit plan of work for 2018/19.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Governance and Audit Committee receive updates on progress made against the 
annual internal audit plan. This report forms part of the overall reporting requirements to 
assist the Council in discharging its responsibilities in relation to the internal audit activity. 

1.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require the Chief Audit Executive to report to the 
Governance and Audit Committee the performance of internal audit relative to its agreed 
plan, including any significant risk exposures and control issues. The frequency of reporting 
at South Holland is to each meeting. 

To comply with the above the report identifies:  
o Any significant changes to the approved Audit Plan;
o Progress made in delivering the agreed audits for the year; 
o Any significant outcomes arising from those audits; and
o Performance measures.

2.0 CURRENT PROGRESS

2.1 The current position in relation to the completion of the Annual Internal Audit Plan 2018/19 
are shown within the report.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 The Governance and Audit Committee are requested to receive and note the Progress 
Report on Internal Audit Activity.  In doing so, the Committee is ensuring that the Internal 
Audit Service remains compliant with professional auditing standards and are fulfilling their 
terms of reference.

4.0 IMPLICATIONS

4.1 Corporate Priorities

4.1.1 Internal Audit helps to ensure that the service areas reviewed and ensuring that they are 
working towards the efficient and effective delivery of the Council’s corporate priorities.

Page 61

Agenda Item 7.



4.2 Financial 

4.2.1 The Internal Audit Plan has been delivered within the approved budget for 2018/19.

4.3 Risk Management 

44.3.1 Internal Audit planning starts with the Council’s key risks, which then directs the audit plan 
for the financial year. Internal Audit reports then identify risks and control weaknesses 
within the Council which are highlighted in this report, with appropriate management action 
being agreed to mitigate these risks within agreed timeframes.

Background papers: - None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Emma Hodds Head of Internal Audit for South Holland DC
Telephone Number: 01508 533791
Email: ehodds@s-norfolk.gov.uk

Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting Emma Hodds

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

Appendices attached to this report:  Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity

Page 62



Page 1 of 12

Eastern Internal Audit Services

South Holland District Council

Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity

Period Covered: 1 April 2018 to 1 October 2018

Responsible Officer: Emma Hodds – Head of Internal Audit for South Holland District Council

CONTENTS

1. INTRODUCTION ..............................................................................................................2

2. MATTERS ARISING FROM COMMITTEE MEETING -  26 JULY 2018 ..........................2

3. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES TO THE APPROVED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN ....................2

4. PROGRESS MADE IN DELIVERING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK ..............................3

5. THE OUTCOMES ARISING FROM OUR WORK ............................................................3

6. PERFORMANCE MEASURES.........................................................................................4

APPENDIX 1 – PROGRESS IN COMPLETING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK...................5

APPENDIX 2 – AUDIT REPORT EXECUTIVE SUMMARIES..............................................7

APPENDIX 3 INTERNAL AUDIT PLANNING FLOWCHART .............................................11

APPENDIX 4 INTERNAL AUDIT STAKEHOLDER CHART – SOUTH HOLLAND 
INCLUDING CPBS .........................................................................................................12

Page 63



Page 2 of 12

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 This report is issued to assist the Authority in discharging its responsibilities in relation to the 
internal audit activity. 

1.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards also require the Chief Audit Executive to report to 
the Audit Committee on the performance of internal audit relative to its plan, including any 
significant risk exposures and control issues. The frequency of reporting and the specific 
content are for the Authority to determine.

1.3 To comply with the above this report includes:  

 Any significant changes to the approved Audit Plan;
 Progress made in delivering the agreed audits for the year;
 Any significant outcomes arising from those audits; and
 Performance Indicator outcomes to date.

2. MATTERS ARISING FROM COMMITTEE MEETING -  26 JULY 2018

2.1 During the last Governance and Audit Committee meeting members were made aware that 
East Lindsay District Council (ELDC) had experienced delays in completing the finance audit 
reports for quarter four. 

2.2 At the request of the Committee, the Head of Internal Audit has worked with ELDC to 
provide a response on the reasons for delays. Following a review of the information 
available, it was observed that an exercise to re-define each process step and lead officer 
responsibility would be of benefit. 

2.3 Upon conclusion of this exercise a process map has been developed to ensure that 
procedures are consistently followed between the two internal audit providers, which is 
attached at Appendix 3 and Appendix 4. 

2.4 In addition, the difference between the two providers assurance terminology was discussed 
by Members. Whilst an explanation of each set of gradings is provided by the Head of 
Internal Audit at each Governance and Audit Committee meeting, ELDC have decided to 
adopt the EIAS assurance definitions going forward to enhance comparability.

3. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES TO THE APPROVED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN

3.1 At the meeting on 15 March 2018, the Annual Internal Audit Plan for the year was approved, 
identifying the specific audits to be delivered. Since then, there has been one significant 
change to that plan as shown below; 

Audit description Nature of the change

East Lindsey Internal Audit Coverage The 20 days reserved for service audits has 
been reallocated to key controls work only. 
This will allow ELDC to cover the eight required 
areas over 40 days with the exception of Payroll 
which will be covered in depth by TIAA in the 
Quarter 3 review of Payroll and Human 
Resources.  
 

Page 64



Page 3 of 12

4. PROGRESS MADE IN DELIVERING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK

4.1 The current position in completing audits to date within the financial year is shown in 
Appendix 1 and progress to date is in line with expectations. 

4.2 In summary 47 days of programmed work has been completed, equating to 18% of the 
(revised) Audit Plan for 2018/19.

5. THE OUTCOMES ARISING FROM OUR WORK

5.1 On completion of each individual audit an assurance level is awarded using the following 
definitions:

Substantial Assurance: Based upon the issues identified there is a robust series of suitably 
designed internal controls in place upon which the organisation relies to manage the risks to 
the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process, and which at the 
time of our review were being consistently applied.

Reasonable Assurance: Based upon the issues identified there is a series of internal 
controls in place, however these could be strengthened to facilitate the organisation’s 
management of risks to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the 
process. Improvements are required to enhance the controls to mitigate these risks.

Limited Assurance: Based upon the issues identified the controls in place are insufficient to 
ensure that the organisation can rely upon them to manage the risks to the continuous and 
effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Significant improvements are 
required to improve the adequacy and effectiveness of the controls to mitigate these risks.

No Assurance: Based upon the issues identified there is a fundamental breakdown or 
absence of core internal controls such that the organisation cannot rely upon them to 
manage risk to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. 
Immediate action is required to improve the controls required to mitigate these risks.

5.2 Recommendations made on completion of audit work are prioritised using the following 
definitions:

Urgent (priority one): Fundamental control issue on which action to implement should be 
taken within 1 month.

Important (priority two): Control issue on which action to implement should be taken within 
3 months.

Needs attention (priority three): Control issue on which action to implement should be 
taken within 6 months.

5.3 In addition, on completion of audit work “Operational Effectiveness Matters” are proposed, 
these set out matters identified during the assignment where there may be opportunities for 
service enhancements to be made to increase both the operational efficiency and enhance 
the delivery of value for money services. These are for management to consider and are not 
part of the follow up process.

Page 65



Page 4 of 12

5.4 During the period covered by the report Internal Audit Services has issued one final report:

Audit Assurance P1 P2 P3

Environmental Services Reasonable 0 1 4

The Executive Summary of this report is attached at Appendix 2, a full copy of this report 
can be requested by Members.

5.5 As can be seen in the table above as a result of this audit five recommendations have been 
raised.

5.5.1 All recommendations have been agreed by management. The one important environmental 
services recommendation relates to ensuring that all new starters are added to the Gemini 
training system promptly following employment so that completed training can be recorded 
and further training requirements can be easily identified. Details of the four ‘needs attention’ 
recommendations can be found at Appendix 2, of this report within the Executive Summary.  
In addition, one Operational Effectiveness Matters has been proposed to management for 
consideration.

5.6 It is pleasing to note that this audit has concluded in a positive opinion being awarded, 
indicating a strong and stable control environment to date, with no issues that would need to 
be considered at year end and included in the Annual Governance Statement.

6. PERFORMANCE MEASURES

6.1 The Internal Audit Services contract includes a suite of key performance measures against 
which the contractor will be reviewed on a quarterly basis, there are a total of 11 indicators, 
over four areas.

6.2 There are individual requirements for performance in relation to each measure; however 
performance will be assessed on an overall basis as follows:

 9-11 KPIs have met target = Green Status.
 5-8 KPIs have met target = Amber Status.
 4 or below have met target = Red Status.

Where performance is amber or red a Performance Improvement Plan will be developed by 
the contractor and agreed with the Internal Audit Manager to ensure that appropriate action 
is taken.

6.3 The first quarters work has been completed and a report on the performance measures 
provided to the Head of Internal Audit, performance is currently at green status with targets 
having been satisfactorily met for this quarter.

6.4 In addition to these quarterly reports from the Contractors Audit Director, ongoing weekly 
updates are provided to ensure that delivery of the audit plan for the current financial year is 
on track. A review of the most recent update indicates that work allocated for quarter two is 
progressing as expected. 

 

Page 66



Page 5 of 12

APPENDIX 1 – PROGRESS IN COMPLETING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK 

TIAA

Audit Area Audit Ref No. of days Revised 
Days

Days 
Delivered

Status Assurance 
Level

Date to 
Committee

Comments

Urgent Important Needs 
Attention

Op

Quarter 1
Environmental Services including waste, 
recycling & depot services

SH1902 16 16 16 Final report issued 13 
September 2018

Reasonable 0 1 4 1 October 2018

TOTAL 16 16 16
Quarter 2
Procurement & Contract Management SH1901 8 8 7 Draft Report imminent Joint audit review
Compass Point - Finance SH1903 10 10 5 Fieldwork underway
Food, Health & Safety SH1905 8 8 7 Draft Report imminent Joint audit review
Democratic Services SH1906 8 8 6 Fieldwork underway Joint audit review
TOTAL 34 34 25
Quarter 3
Corporate Governance SH1908 4 4 0 Joint audit review
Payroll and Human Resources SH1909 15 15 0 Joint audit review
Delivery Unit Team SH1910 6 6 0 Joint audit review
Leisure SH1911 10 10 0
Strategic Enforcement including 
Community Safety & ASB

SH1907 12 12 0

Building Control SH1912 8 8 0
TOTAL 55 55 0
Quarter 4
Asset Management SH1904 10 10 0
Transformation Programme SH1913 6 6 0 Joint audit review
Environmental Protection SH1914 8 8 0
Housing SH1915 30 30 0
TOTAL 54 54 0
IT Audits
Office 365 SH1916 5 5 0 Joint audit review
Cyber Security SH1917 10 10 1 Audit to start 8 October 2018

Network Management SH1918 5 5 0 Joint audit review
Software Licensing SH1919 5 5 0 Audit starting 12 November 

2018
Joint audit review

TOTAL 25 25 1
Follow Up
Follow Up NA 12 12 5
TOTAL 12 12 5

TOTAL 196 196 47 0 1 4 1
Percentage of plan completed 24%

Recommendations

P
age 67



Page 6 of 12

ELDC

Audit Area Audit Ref No. of days Revised 
Days

Days 
Delivered

Status Assurance 
Level

Date to 
Committee

Comments

Urgent Important Needs 
Attention

Op

Audit delivered by East Lindsey District Council
Key Controls & Assurance tbc 20 40 0
Revenues
Income
Benefits
(Payroll)
Housing Rents
Accounts Payable
Accountancy Services
Accounts Receivable
Service audits - tbc tbc 20 0 0
Housing Benefit Subsidy tbc 25 25 0

65 65 0
0%

OVERALL TOTAL 261 261 47
18%

Recommendations

P
age 68



Page 7 of 12

APPENDIX 2 – AUDIT REPORT EXECUTIVE SUMMARIES

Assurance Review of Environmental Services, including Waste 

Executive Summary

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT ACTION POINTS

Control Area Urgent Important Needs Attention Operational

Polies and Procedures 0 0 1 0

Refuse Collection 0 1 1 0

Street Cleansing 0 0 1 1

Grounds Maintenance 0 0 1 0

Total 0 1 4 1

No recommendations have been raised in respect of recycling, garden waste and bulky waste.

SCOPE

The objective of the audit was to review the adequacy, effectiveness and efficiency of the systems and controls in place over Environmental Services. 

P
age 69



Page 8 of 12

RATIONALE

 The systems and processes of internal control are, overall, deemed 'Reasonable Assurance' in managing the risks associated with the audit. The 
assurance opinion has been derived as a result of one 'important' and four 'needs attention' recommendations being raised upon the conclusion of our 
work.

 The audit has also raised one 'operational effectiveness matter', which sets out matters identified during the assignment where there may be 
opportunities for service enhancements to be made to increase both the operational efficiency and enhance the delivery of value for money services.

 This area has not been previously audited by Tiaa, hence no direction of travel has been provided.

POSITIVE FINDINGS

It is acknowledged there are areas where sound controls are in place and operating consistently:

Refuse Collection 

 All health and safety incidents are reported to the Council’s Health and Safety Manager (Compass Point Business Services) thus ensuring 
compliance with Health and Safety regulations. 

 Servicing and maintenance details of all waste vehicles are recorded using the workshop system (fleet management software), thereby providing 
detailed records of the road worthiness of the Council’s refuse fleet.

Garden and Bulky Waste Collections 

 Income from garden waste and bulky waste collections had been received, thereby confirming that payment has been received for all services 
provided and in accordance with approved charging policies.

 Various initiatives, including the use of social media, have taken place to promote the collection of garden waste, following a pilot scheme in 2016 and 
introduced as a permanent service since January 2018. The take up is monitored through a new performance indicator, with extra trucks being 
introduced in early June 2018. This provides a useful service to the residents of South Holland as well as adding a new income stream.   

Recycling

P
age 70



Page 9 of 12

 Recycling credits have been received from Lincolnshire County Council in respect of drop in sites, thereby ensuring income is received towards the 
provision of this service.  

ISSUES TO BE ADDRESSED

The audit has also highlighted the following areas where one 'important' recommendation has been made.

Refuse Collection

 To add all new starters to the Gemini training system, so as to ensure that completion of the requisite training necessary to carrying out their role is 
recorded. This will reduce the risk that any shortfalls in training are quickly identified and rectified, including risks of breaches in health and safety 
requirements.

The audit has also highlighted the following areas where four 'needs attention' recommendations have been made.

Policies and Procedures 

 Internal procedures be produced for staff on processing service requests to mitigate against the risk of inconsistent practices developing and errors 
arising in service provision.  

Refuse Collection 

 For the driver and supervisor to sign daily driver logs to reduce the risk of information not being recorded or recorded incorrectly.  

Street Cleansing

 To review the performance measure for clearing fly tipping to establish whether it is meeting management’s expectations as a measure of the service 
provided.  Having a performance indicator that does not accurately reflect the service provides management with misleading or irrelevant information 
about the service as a whole.

Ground Maintenance

 Ground maintenance and grass cutting records to be signed off by the appropriate member of staff and supervisor, to evidence that the task has been 
completed, thus reducing the reputational risk that the service has not been provided in line with public expectation.

Operational Effectiveness Matters

The operational effectiveness matters, for management to consider relate to the following:

P
age 71



Page 10 of 12

Street Cleansing

 The Council considers introducing a volunteer scheme for litter picking, incorporating a disclaimer regarding duty of care, to generate public 
involvement in reducing litter in the District.

Other issues noted

Testing of complaints established that two from 20 tested had not been acknowledged within the five-day target. The new Environmental Services Manager 
stated that acknowledgement of complaints was not within the service area but the responsibility of the Corporate Improvement Performance (CIP) team, 
before the complaint is passed to the service area. The new Environmental Services Manager also stated that complaint handling, in particular, late 
responders, is a standard item for consideration by the Council's Performance, Risk and Audit Board and that the service area under review is not an area of 
concern. As such, no recommendation has been raised. 

An anomaly was noted in the testing of income for garden waste where although payment was confirmed through the raising of a service request, the date of 
the actual payment was the day after the service request was raised. The new Environmental Services Manager stated that this could be down to a timing 
issue e.g. a web payment and the time of processing. As the payment had been received, no recommendation has been raised. However, the new 
Environmental Services Manager, agreed to monitor this to see if it happens again and to investigate the reasons why.     

Previous audit recommendations

This area had not been audited previously by Tiaa.

APPENDIX 3 INTERNAL AUDIT PLANNING FLOWCHART

P
age 72



Page 11 of 12

Section 151 Officer and Finance Board Consultation

Performance Risk & Audit Board
regularly review and hold officers 
accountable for progress against 
Recommendations. 

Follow up report produced 
by Head of Internal Audit 
showing progress against all 
agreed recommendations. 

Section 151 Officer responsible for delivery and oversight

Audit Plan  

Delivery
-

 Cross reference to SHDC and CPBS Stakeholder Chart 
 Debrief meeting is a discussion prior to the issue of the draft report to ensure that correct conclusions have been drawn. Alternatively an exit meeting may be 

held instead (CPBS audits).

Progress and follow up report 
viewed at all meetings and 
discussed by Governance and 
Audit Committee. 

CPBS recommendation progress 
monitored and progress report 
produced. Validated by TIAA 
and ELDC

Draft report produced 
by TIAA/ELDC quality 

checked by Audit 
Manager

 Draft report issued to 
APM distribution list 

Management response
obtained via email

Exit meeting if required. Where
overall grading is Limited or No 
Assurance or disagreement on 
recommendations

 Final audit report issued
to the distribution list in 
agreed APM and external 
audit. CIP team upload 
report to (Pentana)

Auditors complete audit 
fieldwork and testing. 

Audit Planning 
Memorandum (APM) 
drafted by TIAA/East 
Lindsey based on audit plan 
and discussion with key 
clients. 

January 
Internal Audit Plan signed off by 
Executive Management Team

Annually December
 Created by Head of Internal Audit
 Meet Executive Managers 

and Directors to produce
and develop

Progress report produced by Head 
of Internal Audit including 
Executive Summary of all finalised 
reports. 

 APM review comment and
sign off by:

 Executive Management for 
service 

 Senior Managers for service
 Section 151 Officer & Deputy
 CPBS Client Liaison 
 Relevant CPBS Lead

 CPBS Business Support and 
Business Manager 

 SHC Contact (SM)

February/March
Approval from Governance 
and Audit Committee 

Debrief meeting held 
with key clients

Executive Management Team 
Consultation 

Executive Management Team 
awareness and feedback relating to 
recommendation progress.  

Timescales
Five working days for 
responses to APM and draft 
report

APPENDIX 4 INTERNAL AUDIT STAKEHOLDER CHART – SOUTH HOLLAND INCLUDING CPBS

P
age 73



Page 12 of 12

Section 151 Christine – Strategic Lead for Audit 
CPBS Board  

Lead: Mark Elson

Performance Risk 
and Audit Board 

Lead: Ross Bangs

Client Liaison CPBS – Maxine O’Mahony

Client Liaison Deputy - Phillip Adams

Specific Director Leads 

Maxine O’Mahony, Christine Marshall, Rob Walker 

Chief Executive - Anna Graves

Governance and 
Audit Committee 

Boards
SHDC Contact – Executive 

Managers

HR Phillip 
Adams 

IT Sarah 
Barsby

Governance 
Mark Stinson

Customer 
Contact 
Sarah 

Barsby

Revenues 
and 

Benefits 
Samantha 
Knowles 

Finance 
Samantha 
Knowles

CPBS Lead

Rachel 
Luke

Jackie
Wright

Amy 
Howsam

Sharon
Hammond

Jane
Crosby

Deputy Section 151 Samantha Knowles

People and 
Public 

Protection  

Phillip 
Adams

Place 

Emily 
Spicer

Growth and 
Regeneration 

Richard 
Hodgson

CPBS Lewis Duckett

Head of Operations

P
age 74



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Head of Internal Audit for South Holland DC

To: Governance and Audit Committee, 18 October 2018

Author: Emma Hodds, Head of Internal Audit

Subject: Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations

Purpose: This report provides members with the position on the progress made by 
management in implementing agreed Internal Audit recommendations as at 30 
September 2018.

Recommendation(s): 

1) That members note the contents of the report.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Governance and Audit Committee receives an update on management’s implementation 
of agreed audit recommendations. This report forms part of the overall reporting requirements 
to assist the Council in discharging the responsibilities in relation to its Internal Audit Service.

1.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require the Chief Audit to establish a process to 
monitor and follow up management actions to ensure that they have been effectively 
implemented or that senior management have accepted the risk of not taking action. 

1.3 To comply with the above this report includes the status of agreed actions.

2.0 CURRENT PROGRESS

2.1 The Governance and Audit Committee are asked to receive and note the current position in 
relation to the completion of agreed audit recommendations.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 The Governance and Audit Committee are requested to receive and note the Follow Up 
Report on the implementation of Internal Audit recommendations.  In doing so, the Committee 
is ensuring that it is kept up to date and informed as to the extent to which management has 
progressed Internal Audit recommendations as at 28 September 2018.

4.0 IMPLICATIONS

4.1 Corporate Priorities

4.1.1 Internal Audit helps to ensure that the service areas reviewed are working towards the 
efficient and effective delivery of the Council’s corporate priorities.

Page 75

Agenda Item 8.



4.2 Risk Management 

4.2.1 Failure to implement or improve internal controls may lead to the risks associated with those 
controls materialising.

Background papers: - None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Emma Hodds Head of Internal Audit 
Telephone Number: 01508 533791
Email: ehodds@s-norfolk.gov.uk

Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting Emma Hodds

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

Appendices attached to this report:  Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations

Page 76



Page 1 of 9

Eastern Internal Audit Services

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Follow Up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations

Period Covered: 31 March 2018 to 30 September 2018

Responsible Officer: Emma Hodds – Head of Internal Audit for South Holland DC

CONTENTS

1. INTRODUCTION 2

2. FOLLOW UP PROCESS 2

3. STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS 2

APPENDIX 1 – SUMMARY POSITION All Internal Audit Recommendations 5

APPENDIX 2 OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – 2017/18 6

Page 77



Page 2 of 9

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 This report is being issued to assist the Authority in discharging its responsibilities in relation 
to the internal audit activity.

1.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards also require the Chief Audit Executive to 
establish a process to monitor and follow up management actions to ensure that they have 
been effectively implemented or that senior management have accepted the risk of not 
taking action. The frequency of reporting and the specific content are for the Authority to 
determine.

1.3 To comply with the above this report includes:

 The status of agreed actions. 

2. FOLLOW UP PROCESS 

Eastern Internal Audit Services Recommendations 

2.1 As a result of audit recommendations raised by TIAA Ltd, management agree action to 
ensure implementation within a specific timeframe and by a responsible officer. 

2.2 EIAS recommendations are subsequently uploaded on to the Council’s performance 
management system – Pentana – with this alerting management to update progress in 
advance of the due date through email alerts. Management action to date is then input with 
internal audit then either verifying the evidence provided and closing the recommendation or 
agreeing to the extension date provided.

2.3 Escalation is also in place to deal with non-responses or recommendations which have been 
overdue for a long time through the Performance, Risk and Audit Board and through the 
Finance Board as required due to the statutory requirements of the Section 151 Officer to 
ensure that appropriate risk mitigation action is being taken. Ultimately further escalation is 
through the Executive Management Team and then the Committee.

Compass Point Business Services (CPBS) Audit Recommendations

2.4 East Lindsey District Council (ELDC) undertake the internal audit reviews of the Compass 
Point Business Services key functions. Recommendations raised are then subsequently 
monitored by ELDC staff, with updates provided to the Head of Internal Audit for South 
Holland on a quarterly basis. These recommendations are now also recorded on Pentana, 
which enables greater oversight by both CPBS and South Holland management. 

3. STATUS OF RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 Appendix 1 to this report shows the details of the progress made to date in relation to the 
implementation of all agreed internal audit recommendations, and reflects the year in which 
the audit was undertaken to enable the Committee to easily identify old outstanding 
recommendations. The table also identifies between outstanding recommendations that 
have previously been reported to this Committee and then those which have become 
outstanding this time around.

3.2 In relation to the historic recommendations, i.e. those which were raised by Audit 
Lincolnshire, progress has been made with no recommendations now outstanding.  

Page 78



Page 3 of 9

3.3 In 2016/17 a total of 88 recommendations were raised by both internal audit providers. Of 
these 86 have been implemented by management. No recommendations now remain 
outstanding, and five have been superseded. 

Number raised 88

Complete 83 94%

Superseded 5 6%

3.4 Details of the three recommendations that have been superseded since the last follow up 
report are as follows:

 HR & Payroll Key Controls – to ensure the establishment list is validated. This 
recommendation has been again raised with in the 2017/18 HR and Payroll audit 
report and will be completed by March 2019. 

 Accounts Receivable – to ensure the authorisation matrix is updated. This 
recommendation has been raised within the 2017/18 accounts receivable report and 
is due for 31 January 2018. 

 Income – to develop a permanent fix to VAT issue for building control website. This 
has been raised in the 2017/18 Accounts Receivable audit report and is due to be 
completed by December 2018. 

3.5 In 2017/18 a total of 85 recommendations have been raised by both internal audit providers.  
Of those, 60 have been implemented by management, 17 are outstanding (seven priority 
one, nine priority two and one priority three) and eight are not yet due. 

3.6 The management responses in relation to the priority one and priority two outstanding 
recommendations can be seen at Appendix 3 of the report. 

3.7 In addition, 22 advisory points were raised for CPBS audits and whilst these are not formal 
recommendations to be followed up, it is expected that these will be addressed in due 
course and progress will be reviewed.

Number raised to date 85

Complete 60 71%

Outstanding 17 20%

Not yet due 8 9%

3.8 Update on progress with limited and no assurance conclusions

Page 79



Page 4 of 9

3.8.1 The internal audit review of Section 106 Agreements concluded with a limited assurance, 
since the end of the financial year 2017/18 all six recommendations raised are now 
confirmed as complete. 

3.8.2 The internal audit review of Asset Management concluded with a limited assurance, a 
priority one recommendation has been addressed by management, however the remaining 
seven recommendations are all now overdue, with management comment provided at 
appendix two of the report. 

The Place Manager has also confirmed; As a consequence of the 2017 Place Directorate 
Review, a new Asset Team was formed, positioned in with the Housing and Property 
function. This new team brought together a range of operational skills to refresh the activities 
of what had previously been light touch asset management of those held in the general fund. 

Utilising the 2017 Asset Management Audit, the priority of the newly formed team initially has 
been to gain an understanding of the assets owned by the Council and to work on a risk 
based action plan; tackling compliance issues, expired leases and pulling the service into 
line with contemporary asset and facility management practice. Whilst the extent of the 
maintenance backlog is still not fully understood, the team are currently securing building 
condition surveys as appropriate to enable a robust programme of maintenance to be put 
forward. 

Reflecting on the progress of the team over the last 12 months concludes that a renewed 
refocus is required to ensure the pace of action is accelerated and effective. Team resources 
are currently under review and will be flexed accordingly to ensure the outstanding audit 
recommendations are complete. 

3.8.3 The internal audit review of the Revenues Service concluded with a limited assurance and a 
total of five recommendations were raised. Four of which are now complete, and one priority 
one recommendation is now overdue, with a new deadline of 31 October 2018, further detail 
can be found in appendix two of the report. 

3.8.4 The internal audit review of the Payroll service concluded in a limited assurance and a total 
of seven recommendations were raised. Four of which are now complete, two priority one 
recommendations are not yet due as at the time of writing this report, and a new deadline for 
the remaining priority one recommendation has been agreed of 30 November 2018. Further 
detail on this recommendation can be found at appendix two of the report. 

3.8.5 The internal audit review of the Accounts Receivable service concluded with no assurance 
and a total of 10 recommendations were raised, with five of these now confirmed as 
complete. Two priority one recommendations are not yet due, with one urgent 
recommendation now overdue, with a revised deadline of January 2019. The remaining two 
priority two recommendations are overdue and extensions have been agreed for 31 October 
2018. Further detail on these overdue recommendations can be found at appendix two of the 
report. 

Page 80



Page 5 of 9

APPENDIX 1 – SUMMARY POSITION All Internal Audit Recommendations

P
age 81



Page 6 of 9

APPENDIX 2 OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – 2017/18

Audit Reference Main Contact Recommendations Priority Status Description Original Date 
Due for 
Completion

Revised Date 
Due for 
Completion

Latest Note

SH1804 Welland Homes Strategic 
Housing 
Manager

The company formally adopt key 
policies such as business continuity 
and disaster recovery and data 
protection, which are aligned with the 
Council's own policies.

Priroty 
Two

Outstanding (With 
Agreed Extension)

31-Mar-18 08-Oct-18 Delayed whilst work has been taking place around 
updates to council policies and work to prepare a 
business continuity plan for Welland Homes. 
Policies for will be presented to the Welland 
Homes Board on October 2nd for adoption.

SH1804 Welland Homes Strategic 
Housing 
Manager

To devise a service level agreement to 
formally record the services provided 
by the Council to Welland Homes, and 
to the terms on which those services 
are provided, including service 
charges.

Priroty 
Two

Outstanding (With 
Agreed Extension)

31-Mar-18 08-Oct-18 Draft SLA currently being prepared. Will be 
presented at the next Welland Homes Board 
Meeting on Oct 2nd 2018

SH1809 Asset Management Property Asset 
Manager

The Asset Management Strategy be 
reviewed and updated to;
- remove operational detail,
- take account of the recent Place 
review, and
- the inclusion of operational and non-
operational assets.
Details such asset numbers and value 
be removed from the strategy and 
included in a policy and procedure 
document, which can be updated on a 
more regular basis.

Priority 
One

Outstanding (With 
Agreed Extension)

21-Jun-18 31-Jan-19 The Policy has been up dated in line with the audit 
recommendations and will go to PDP for 
approval.

A further policy review is recommended to align 
the policy with the development of a new fully 
integrated strategy being developed in conjunction 
with the Delivery Team in 2019/20.

SH1809 Asset Management Property Asset 
Manager

A programmed review of all leases is 
to be undertaken, this will include; 
Lease agreements be entered into for 
existing tenants, Lease agreements be 
entered into for new tenants and a 
review of rent increments given to long 
term tenants on or before the 
expiration of their current lease period.

Priority 
One

Outstanding (With 
Agreed Extension)

21-Jun-18 31-Dec-18 Industrial units – The Assets function within 
Property Services are working in collaboration 
with the Delivery Team to make 
recommendations to change the management 
strategy of the industrial units. Recommendations 
will include, revising the lettings policy, introducing 
lettable standards and Void/end of tenancy 
inspections, arrears management and change 
over of Terms of Tenancy. A timeline and tasks 
are being established. 

All other assets  - Phase 1 is to review the high 
profile assets (currently 7 renewals). 
A review of all of the core leases will be complete 
by the end of December 2018

P
age 82



Page 7 of 9

Audit Reference Main Contact Recommendations Priority Status Description Original Date 
Due for 
Completion

Revised Date 
Due for 
Completion

Latest Note

SH1809 Asset Management Property Asset 
Manager

Recommendation 3: End of tenancy 
inspections be undertaken, with a 
checklist completed to record any 
repair works on the property, along 
with costs being recovered from 
tenants where applicable

Priority 
One

Outstanding (With 
Agreed Extension)

01-Apr-18 31-Jan-19 A proposal to introduce end of tenancy 
inspections has been completed and has been 
incorporated into a revised Lettings Policy which 
will go to PDP for approval. More robust 
procedures are in place in the interim period.

SH1809 Asset Management Property Asset 
Manager

Rent free periods granted to tenants 
be documented with details of 
justification, approval, and duration of 
the rent free period and retained on 
file.
This is then to be appropriately 
reviewed and actioned once the rent 
free period has concluded.

Priority 
One

Outstanding (With 
Agreed Extension)

01-May-18 31-Dec-18 This is recorded but the very principle of granting 
the rent free period as compensation of letting a 
unit not to the required standard is currently under 
review by Assets and the Delivery team. One of 
the key changes that is being proposed is to move 
away from offering a 'rent free period' and move 
towards adopting a lettable standard. This option 
will be included in the overall proposal on the 
management of industrial units as detailed in 
action number 2. In the interim period the Council 
are not looking to offer rent free periods.

SH1809 Asset Management Property Asset 
Manager

The Corporate Land and Property 
Policy be updated to reflect current 
process and the recent Place Review. 
This to include version control 
information, stating when the 
document is next due for review.

Priroty 
Two

Outstanding (With 
Agreed Extension)

21-Jun-18 31-Jan-19 Review of document has been completed and will 
be circulated for initial comment by officers 5th 
October 2018. This will then go to PDP for review 
and approval.

SH1809 Asset Management Property Asset 
Manager

The Letting Policy be updated to reflect 
current practices, such as not 
obtaining deposits from tenants in the 
industrial units and how end of tenancy 
checks will take account of any 
damages incurred by the tenant.

Priroty 
Two

Outstanding (With 
Agreed Extension)

21-Jun-18 31-Jan-19 A revised Lettings Policy will go to PDP, this is 
currently being revised in collaboration with the 
Delivery Team. Discussion points will be 
considered at the next scheduled meeting on the 
31/10/2018 as part of a wider review on the 
management of the industrial units.

P
age 83



Page 8 of 9

Audit Reference Main Contact Recommendations Priority Status Description Original Date 
Due for 
Completion

Revised Date 
Due for 
Completion

Latest Note

SH1818 Planning and Planning 
Enforcement 

Principal 
Planning 
Officer

Another officer be allocated to cover 
enforcement activity in the absence of 
the Senior Compliance Officer during 
busy periods or periods of absence.

Priroty 
Two

Outstanding (With 
Agreed Extension)

31-Mar-18 29-Mar-19 The potential for a second full-time enforcement 
officer is being explored through the Planning and 
Building Control Service review.  A draft proposal 
is with CMT for comment.This will come through 
the Planning & Building Control Review. An 
extension of time will is therefore required. 

Accounts Payable Key Controls Head of 
Finance

Investigate the possibility of restricting 
the ability to approve supplier set ups 
to nominated staff

Priroty 
Two

Outstanding (With 
Agreed Extension)

30-Jun-18 30-Nov-18 This is still in progress with ICT, along with a few 
other small amendments required to this form on 
the self serve portals.

 Accounts Payable Key Controls Head of 
Finance

Investigate the options for restricting 
visibility of bank account details within 
the new supplier set ups sharepoint 
page. Restrict the supplier set ups 
page so that officers can only access 
their organisation

Priroty 
Two

Outstanding (With 
Agreed Extension)

30-Jun-18 31-Oct-18 This is still in progress with IT - changes 
regarding visibility of bank account details to be 
amended today. Discussion regarding ELDC and 
MVLT access to both lists to be continued.

 Revenues Key Controls Head of 
Finance

Clear monitoring of the implementation 
of Paye.net be in place

Priority 
One

Outstanding (With 
agreed extension)

30-Sep-18 31-Oct-18 Two finance staff are now able to implement 
refunds via Paye.net. and this is working well.

Other officers are being set up by finance on 
paye.net for other activities. (e.g. payments by 
card)

issues relating to taking miscellaneous payments HR & Payroll HR Service 
Manager

Establishment lists be produced and 
provided to managers to review and 
confirm that there are no inaccuracies.

Priority 
One

Outstanding (With 
Agreed Extension)

30-Jun-17 31-Mar-19 The meeting with Finance/HR was postponed - 
awaiting Finance to commit what their 
requirements of the Business Objects report is to 
be before progressing. 

Accounts Receivable Head of 
Finance

On roll out of the new Authorisation 
Matrix managers are to ensure that the 
entries for their service area are 
reviewed and updated.

Priority 
One

Outstanding (With 
Agreed Extension)

28-Sep-18 31-Jan-19 There has been a delay with the update of the 
authorisation matrices - earlier statutory deadlines 
for the year end closedown meant that this work 
had to be started later, and then various changes 
to the organisation structures have meant that this 
review has been more complex to administer. 
Work is ongoing with both clients.

P
age 84



Page 9 of 9

Audit Reference Main Contact Recommendations Priority Status Description Original Date 
Due for 
Completion

Revised Date 
Due for 
Completion

Latest Note

Accounts Receivable Head of 
Finance

Periodic review of billing codes be 
completed to ensure that correct VAT 
codes are assigned

Priroty 
Two

Outstanding (With 
Agreed Extension)

28-Sep-18 31-Oct-18 This has been included in the workplan for 
October 2018

Accounts Receivable Head of 
Finance

South Holland to consider the inclusion 
of the Aged Debt Analysis within the 
Quarterly Performance reports.
Reintroduce the VAT E Learning. 
Monitor the completion of the E 
Learning by all relevant staff

Priroty 
Two

Outstanding (With 
Agreed Extension)

28-Sep-18 31-Oct-18 To be included in the October work programme. 

P
age 85



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Head of Internal Audit 

To: Governance and Audit Committee, 18 October 2018

Author: Emma Hodds, Head of Internal Audit for South Holland DC

Subject: Self-Assessment of the Committee

Purpose: The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) 
document on “audit committees – practical guidance for local authorities 
and police” sets out the guidance in the function and operation of audit 
committees. It is good practice for audit committees to complete a regular 
self-assessment exercise, to be satisfied that the Committee is performing 
effectively. 

Recommendation(s): 

1) That Committee agree their self-assessment against best practice at Appendix 1 to this report.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Chartered Institute for Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) document on “audit 
committees – practical guidance for local authorities and police” set out the guidance on the 
function and operation of audit committees. It represents CIPFA’s view of best practice and 
incorporates the position statement previously issued. The guidance states “the purpose of 
an audit committee is to provide those charged with governance independent assurance on 
the adequacy of the risk management framework, the internal control environment and the 
integrity of the financial reporting and annual governance processes”. 

1.2 The Section 151 Officer has overarching responsibility for discharging the requirement for 
sound financial management, and to be truly effective requires an audit committee to 
provide support and challenge. 

1.3 Good audit committees are characterised by; balanced, objective, independent 
knowledgeable and properly trained Members, a membership that is supportive of good 
governance principles, a strong independently minded chair, an unbiased attitude and the 
ability to challenge when required.

1.4 It is therefore good practice for audit committees to complete a regular self-assessment 
exercise against a checklist, to be satisfied that the Committee is performing effectively.

1.5  In addition, the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards also call for the audit committee to 
assess their remit and effectiveness, in relation to Purpose, Authority and Responsibility, to 
facilitate the work of this Committee. 

1.6 The Governance and Audit Committee has regularly carried out the self-assessment 
exercise in the past and has taken action where necessary to ensure full compliance with 
best practice. 

Page 87

Agenda Item 9.



1.7 The guidance provides two tools against which the Committee can assess itself, the first 
(self-assessment of good practice) supports an assessment against recommended best 
practice to inform and support the Committee. The second assessment tool (evaluating the 
effectiveness if the audit committee) helps Committee Members to consider where it is 
most effective and where there may be scope to do more. To be effective the Committee 
should be able to identify evidence of its impact or influence lined to specific improvements. 

1.8 At the Governance and Audit Committee meeting on the 12 September 2017 the 
Committee reviewed the assessment tools and concluded on action points that were 
required. This is attached at Appendix 1 of the report for Members to review and ensure 
that this is still an accurate reflection. 

1.9 Members attention is drawn to the action points that were agreed at the time:

Promoting the principles of good governance and their application to decision making – it 
would be beneficial to have wider managers at the meetings, as appropriate.

Helping the authority to implement the values of good governance, including effective 
arrangements for countering fraud and corruption risks – fraud policies need updating and 
taking back to Committee for approval. Training to then be provided to Members on the 
Councils fraud policies.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 The alternative approach would be for the Committee not to complete the self-assessment 
exercise, however this would result in no assurance being provided that the Committee is 
assisting the Council in achieving good corporate governance, and is sufficiently 
proactive.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1 Completion of the self-assessment provides feedback on the effectiveness of the current 
arrangements, and ensures that best practice is followed by the Committee, and good 
corporate governance is achieved. 

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The Committee are able to demonstrate that best practice is followed and that they are 
proactive in helping to raise the profile of internal control,. .risk management and financial 
reporting at the Council.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues; Constitutional 
& Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Equality & Diversity/Human 
Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk Management; Safeguarding; 
Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Transformation Programme; Other. 
Where the report author considers that there may be implications under one or more of 
these headings, these are identified below.

5.2 Corporate Priorities

Page 88



5.2.1 The Committee, through its terms of reference, helps to ensure that the service areas and 
risks reported are working towards the efficient and effective delivery of the Council’s 
corporate priorities.

5.3 Risk Management

5.3.1 The Committee supports the oversight of the Council’s risk management framework which 
will in turn ensure that the Council’s key risks are accurately reviewed and addressed. 
This is ensured by following best practice and adopting sounds terms of reference. 

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 Not applicable.

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Emma Hodds, Head of Internal Audit for South Holland DC
Telephone Number: 01508 533791
Email: ehodds@s-norfolk.gov.uk 

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

This report refers to a Mandatory Service 

Appendices attached to this report: 
Appendix 1 Audit Committee Self-Assessment Checklist 

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Appendix 1- Self-assessment of good practice

This evaluation will support an assessment against recommended practice to inform and support the Audit Committee. This is a high-level review 
that incorporates the key principles set out in CIPFA’s Position Statement: Audit Committees in Local Authorities and Police. Where an Audit 
Committee has a high degree of performance against the good practice principle’s then it is an indicator that the committee is soundly based 
and has in place knowledgeable membership. These are essential factors in developing an effective Audit Committee. 

Good Practice Questions Yes Partly No

Audit Committee purpose and governance

1 Does the authority have a dedicated audit committee? √

2 Does the audit committee report directly to full council? √

3 Do the terms of reference clearly set out the purpose of the committee in accordance with CIPFA’s position 
statement?

√

4 Is the role and purpose of the audit committee understood and accepted across the authority? √

5 Does the audit committee provide support to the authority in meeting the requirements of good governance? √

6 Are the arrangements to hold the committee to accounts for its performance operating satisfactorily? √

Functions of the committee

7 Do the committee’s terms of reference explicitly address all the core area identified in CIPFA’s position 
statement?

- Good governance
- Assurance framework
- Internal audit
- External audit
- Financial reporting 
- Risk management
- Value for money or best value
- Counter fraud and corruption 

√

8 Is an annual evaluation undertaken to assess whether the committee is fulfilling its terms of reference and 
that adequate consideration has been given to all core areas?

√

P
age 91



2

9 Has the audit committee considered the wider areas identified in CIPFA’s position statement and whether it 
would be appropriate for the committee to undertake them?

√

10 Where coverage of core areas has been found to be limited, are plans in place to address this? √

11 Has the committee maintained its non-advisory role by not taking on any decision making powers that are not 
in line with its core purpose?

√

Membership and support

12 Has an effective audit committee structure and composition of the board been selected?

This should include:

- Separation from the executive
- An appropriate mix of knowledge and skills among the membership
- A size of committee that is not unwieldy
- Where independent members are used, that they have been appointed using appropriate process

√

13 Does the chair of the committee have appropriate knowledge and skills? √

14 Are arrangements in place to support the committee with briefings and training? √

15 Has the membership of the committee been assessed against the core knowledge and skills framework and 
found to be satisfactory?

√

16 Does the committee have good working relationships with key people and organisations, including external 
audit, internal audit and the chief finance officer?

√

17 Is adequate secretariat and administrative support to the committee provided? √

Effectiveness of the committee

18 Has the committee obtained feedback on its performance from those interacting with the committee or relying 
on its work?

√

19 Has the committee evaluated whether and how it is adding value to the organisation? √

20 Does the committee have an action plan to improve any areas of weakness? √

Notes:

P
age 92



3

18 – it is recognised that the Committee covers work in a specialist areas and the Committee are left to get on with the associated terms of 
reference.

19 – the role of the Committee gas grown and the Members have become more confident over time, and therefore adds value to the organisation. 
Members felt that they could add more value, but are guided by officers and accept the recommendations of the officers presenting the reports. 
If the Committee had any issues they felt that they knew where they could direct these to. 

20 – this will be developed, as needed, on conclusion of this self-assessment. 

P
age 93



4

Evaluating the Effectiveness of the Audit Committee

This assessment tool helps Audit Committee members to consider where it is most effective and where there may be scope to do more. To be 
considered effective, the Audit Committee should be able to identify evidence of its impact or influence linked to specific improvements. .

Areas where the audit 
committee can add value by 
supporting improvement

Examples of how the audit 
committee can add value and 
provide evidence of 
effectiveness

Self-evaluation examples, areas of strength & weakness

Promoting the principles of 
good governance and their 
application to decision making

Providing robust review of the 
AGS and the assurances 
underpinning it

Working with key members to 
improve their understanding of 
the AGS and their contribution 
to it

Supporting reviews / audits of 
governance arrangements

Participating in self-
assessments of governance 
arrangements

Working with partners audit 
committees to review 
governance arrangements in 
partnerships

Attendance at this Committee meeting and others gives an overall 
picture and enables the Members to see how they fit in with the 
overall governance framework at the Council.

Members will regularly discuss items with officers and the 
governance structure is clear. 

The Committee are also aware that they need to focus on areas 
where it is potentially not working ok, and concentrate their 
attention there. 

It would be beneficial to have wider managers at the meetings, as 
appropriate. ACTION POINT

Contributing to the development 
of an effective control 
environment

Monitoring of the 
implementation of 
recommendations from auditors

Encouraging ownership of the 
internal control framework by 
appropriate managers

Members felt they were confident that they can raise concerns and 
have discussions regarding the control environment and that 
reports from internal audit focus on how effective the control 
environment is. 

P
age 94



5

Raising significant concerns 
over controls with appropriate 
senior managers

Supporting the establishment of 
arrangements for the 
governance of risk and for 
effective arrangements to 
manage risks

Reviewing risk management 
arrangements and their 
effectiveness e.g. risk 
management benchmarking

Monitoring improvements

Holding risk owners to account 
for major / strategic risks

Members are confident in checking back on risks raised as part of 
reports and they are more confident now. 

Members felt that sometimes though they do need more of a 
bigger picture and clarity over the risks reported. 

The Members do benefit for being on other Committee’s and get 
a good “feeling” for those risks. 

Advising on the adequacy of the 
assurance framework and 
considering whether assurance 
is deployed efficiently and 
effectively

Specifying its assurance needs, 
identifying gaps or overlaps in 
assurance

Seeking to streamline 
assurance gathering and 
reporting 

Reviewing the effectiveness of 
assurance providers e.g. 
internal audit, risk management, 
external audit

The relevant information is forthcoming through the reports 
received from officer, and Members felt they would be confident to 
raise concerns / comments. 

Members felt they have confidence in the report received from 
officers and that they can follow up on management comments. 

Supporting the quality of the 
internal audit activity, 
particularly by underpinning its 
organisational independence

Reviewing the audit charter and 
functional reporting 
arrangements

Assessing the effectiveness if 
internal audit arrangements and 
supporting improvements

Members felt that they get a clear picture form the internal audit 
reports and are confident in questioning in the right area, as 
applicable. 

Members also felt that they could raise concerns confidentially, if 
appropriate. 

Aiding the achievement of the 
authority’s goals and objectives 
through helping to ensure 
appropriate governance, risk, 
control and assurance 
arrangements

Reviewing major projects and 
programmes to ensure that 
governance and assurance 
arrangements are in place

In relation to the transformation programme Members felt they 
need to know what the Council is doing and that its right – 
Members felt that sometimes they needed more information. 

It was felt there could possibly be earlier pre-scrutiny. For example 
have savings and targets been achieved as planned, and what 
has actually been achieved. 

P
age 95



6

Reviewing the effectiveness of 
performance management 
arrangements

Supporting the development of 
robust arrangements for 
ensuring value for money

Ensuring that assurance on 
value for money arrangements 
is included in the assurances 
received by the audit committee

Considering how performance 
in value for money is evaluated 
as part of the AGS

Covered in reports from external audit mainly, and Members have 
confidence in what they are told – however they recognised that 
there is little comparison. 

Helping the authority to 
implement the values of good 
governance, including effective 
arrangements for countering 
fraud and corruption risks

Reviewing arrangements in 
place for countering fraud and 
corruption

Reviewing fraud risks and the 
effectiveness of the 
organisations strategy to 
address those risks

Assessing the effectiveness of 
ethical governance 
arrangements for both staff and 
members 

Training was recently provided in relation to Fraud. 

The Committee recognise that controls in relation to purchase 
orders need improving and they are keeping a watching brief on 
this. 

Members felt that policy is clear and they would know where to 
raise issues, however they feel that they are not often informed 
early enough if there are ay such issues.

Fraud Policies need updating and taking back to Committee for 
approval – ACTION POINT

As a result of this training to members on the Council’s fraud 
policies would be beneficial to increase understanding and 
Members role -  ACTION POINT

Promoting effective public 
reporting to the authority’s 
stakeholders and local 
community and measures to 
improve transparency and 
accountability

Improving how the authority 
discharges its responsibilities 
for public reporting, e.g. better 
targeting the audience, use of 
plain English

Reviewing whether decision 
making through partnership 
organisations remains 
transparent and publicly 

Reports received by officers are clear and Members understand 
the messages. 

P
age 96



7

accessible and encouraging 
greater transparency

P
age 97



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Christine Marshall - Executive Director Commercialisation and Section 151 
Officer

To: Governance and Audit Committee – 18 October 2018

(Author: Sean Howsam – Finance Manager Treasury (Compass Point Business 
Services (CPBS)))

Subject: Mid Term Treasury Report 2018/19 

Purpose: To provide an update of the treasury management position of the Council 
as at 30 September 2018.

Recommendations: 

1            That Governance and Audit Committee note this report, the economic update from Link 
Asset Services at Appendix A and the treasury activity as detailed in Appendix B and 
make any comments for consideration by Council at their meeting on 28 November 2018.

1.0 BACKGROUND

In December 2017, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, (CIPFA), 
issued revised Prudential and Treasury Management Codes. As from 2019/20, all local 
authorities will be required to prepare a Capital Strategy which is intended to provide the 
following: - 

• a high-level overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury 
management activity contribute to the provision of services 

• an overview of how the associated risk is managed 
• the implications for future financial sustainability 

A report setting out our Capital Strategy will be taken to the full council as part of the 
budget setting report before 31 March 2019. 

Treasury management is defined as: “The management of the local authority’s borrowing, 
investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market transactions; 
the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of 
optimum performance consistent with those risks.”

The Council operates a balanced budget, which broadly means cash raised during the 
year will meet its cash expenditure.  Part of the treasury management operations ensure 
this cash flow is adequately planned, with surplus monies being invested in low risk 
counterparties, providing adequate liquidity initially before considering maximising 
investment return.

The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the 
Council’s capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the 
Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure the Council can meet its 
capital spending obligations.  This management of longer term cash may involve 
arranging long or short term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses, and on 
occasion any debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council risk or cost 
objectives.

Page 99

Agenda Item 10.



The Treasury Management function is administered by Compass Point Business Services 
on behalf of the Council.

This report has been written in accordance with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management (revised 2017).  The primary requirements are as 
follows:

• Creation and maintenance of a Treasury Management Policy Statement which sets 
out the policies and objectives of the Council’s treasury management activities;

• Creation and maintenance of Treasury Management Practices which set out the 
manner in which the Council will seek to achieve those policies and objectives;

• Receipt by full council of an annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement - 
including the Annual Investment Strategy and Minimum Revenue Provision Policy - 
for the year ahead, a Mid-year Review Report (this report) and an Annual Report 
(stewardship report) covering activities during the previous year;

• Delegation by the Council of responsibilities for implementing and monitoring 
treasury management policies and practices and for the execution and 
administration of treasury management decisions; and 

• Delegation by the Council of the role of scrutiny of treasury management strategy 
and policies to a specific named body.  For this Council the delegated body is the 
Governance and Audit Committee.

Attached at Appendix A is an economic update from Link Asset Services and Appendix 
B the 2018/19 Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment 
Strategy update for scrutiny to enable Governance and Audit to make any comments for 
consideration by Council at their meeting on 28 November 2018.

The mid-year report has been prepared in compliance with CIPFA’s Code of Practice on 
Treasury Management, and covers the following:

• An economic update for the 2018/19 financial year to 30 September 2018;
• A review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment 

Strategy;
• The Council’s capital expenditure as set out in the capital strategy and prudential 

indicators;
• A review of the Council’s investment portfolio for 2018/19;
• A review of the Council’s borrowing strategy for 2018/19;
• A review of any debt rescheduling undertaken during 2018/19;
• A review of compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits for 2018/19.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 As the report is an update report there are no alternative options presented.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 To comply with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2017.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The report provides Members with a summary of the economy, the effect it has had on 
financial markets and the treasury activity during 2018/19. The report requires scrutiny 
prior to the minutes being submitting to Council for approval.

Page 100



5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Constitution & Legal

5.1.1 This Council is required to produce a mid-term treasury report to comply with the CIPFA 
Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2017. The report has no implications which 
would affect the constitution and does not therefore warrant a further change in the 
constitution.

5.1.2 Plans and strategies for control of the Council’s borrowing, investments, capital 
expenditure and minimum revenue provision form part of the Council’s policy framework 
and are therefore a non-executive (Council) function under the Council’s Constitution.

5.2 Financial

5.2.1 This mid-term report provides a review of the treasury activity for the first six month of the 
2018/19 financial year.

5.2.2 The Council held £43.777m of investments and £1.827m of loans to Welland Homes as at 
30 September 2018 (£36.540m and £1.529m as at 31 March 2018). The investment 
portfolio yield for the first six months of the year is 0.84% against a benchmark of 0.61% 
(average 3 month LIBID).

5.2.3 The Council’s budgeted investment return for 2018/19 is £258,000 (GF £196,000, HRA 
£62,000) and performance for the year to date is £184,510 (GF £129,175, HRA £55,335). 
Expectation is that the outturn for investment returns will be approximately £375,000 (GF 
£266,200, HRA £108,800).

5.3   Risk Management

5.3.1   The Council’s priority is the security of its investments.

5.4   Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

5.4.1   The report is being submitted for pre decision scrutiny prior to being submitted to Council.

5.4.2   Link Asset Services have been consulted in relation to the compilation of this report.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 All.
 

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1   CPBS – Compass Point Business Services

7.2   CPI – Consumer Price Index

7.3   CIPFA – Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy

7.4 CFR – Capital Financing Requirement

7.5 EU – European Union

7.6 GDP – Gross Domestic Product

Page 101



7.7 LIBID – London Inter Bank Bid (Investment Rate)

7.8 MPC – Monetary Policy Committee

7.9 PWLB – Public Works Loan Board

7.10 SME – Small and Medium Sized Enterprise

7.11 TMSS – Treasury Management Strategy Statement

Background papers:-

a) SHDC Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision Policy 
Statement and Annual Investment Strategy 2018/19.

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post Sean Howsam – Finance Manager Treasury (CPBS)
Telephone Number: 01507 613248
Email: sean.howsam@cpbs.com

Key Decision: No 

Exempt Decision: No 

This report refers to a Mandatory Service

Appendices attached to this report: 

Appendix A – Economic Update (from Link Asset Services)

Appendix B - Treasury Management Strategy Statement & Annual Investment Strategy Update 
2018/19.

Page 102

file:///G:/Committee/Committee/Report%20Guide/2014/THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc


APPENDIX A

Economics and Interest Rates (from Link Asset Services)

ECONOMICS UPDATE

UK. The first half of 2018/19 has seen UK economic growth post a modest performance, but 
sufficiently robust for the Monetary Policy Committee, (MPC), to unanimously (9-0) vote to increase 
Bank Rate on 2 August from 0.5% to 0.75%.  Although growth looks as if it will only be modest at 
around 1.5% in 2018, the Bank of England’s August Quarterly Inflation Report forecast that growth 
will pick up to 1.8% in 2019, albeit there were several caveats – mainly related to whether or not 
the UK achieves an orderly withdrawal from the European Union in March 2019.

Some MPC members have expressed concerns about a build-up of inflationary pressures, 
particularly with the pound falling in value again against both the US dollar and the Euro.  The 
Consumer Price Index (CPI) measure of inflation rose unexpectedly from 2.4% in June to 2.7% in 
August due to increases in volatile components, but is expected to fall back to the 2% inflation 
target over the next two years given a scenario of minimal increases in Bank Rate.  The MPC has 
indicated Bank Rate would need to be in the region of 1.5% by March 2021 for inflation to stay on 
track.  Financial markets are currently pricing in the next increase in Bank Rate for the second half 
of 2019.

As for the labour market, unemployment has continued at a 43 year low of 4% on the 
Independent Labour Organisation measure.  A combination of job vacancies hitting an all-time high 
in July, together with negligible growth in total employment numbers, indicates that employers are 
now having major difficulties filling job vacancies with suitable staff.  It was therefore unsurprising 
that wage inflation picked up to 2.9%, (3 month average regular pay, excluding bonuses) and to a 
one month figure in July of 3.1%.  This meant that in real terms, (i.e. wage rates higher than CPI 
inflation), earnings grew by about 0.4%, near to the joint high of 0.5% since 2009.  (The previous 
high point was in July 2015.)  Given the UK economy is very much services sector driven, an 
increase in household spending power is likely to feed through into providing some support to the 
overall rate of economic growth in the coming months. This tends to confirm that the MPC were 
right to start on a cautious increase in Bank Rate in August as it views wage inflation in excess of 
3% as increasing inflationary pressures within the UK economy.  However, the MPC will need to 
tread cautiously before increasing Bank Rate again, especially given all the uncertainties around 
Brexit.  

In the political arena, there is a risk that the current Conservative minority government may be 
unable to muster a majority in the Commons over Brexit.  However, our central position is that 
Prime Minister May’s government will endure, despite various setbacks, along the route to Brexit in 
March 2019.  If, however, the UK faces a general election in the next 12 months, this could result 
in a potential loosening of monetary policy and therefore medium to longer dated gilt yields could 
rise on the expectation of a weak pound and concerns around inflation picking up.

USA.  President Trump’s massive easing of fiscal policy is fuelling a (temporary) boost in 
consumption which has generated an upturn in the rate of strong growth which rose from 2.2%, 
(annualised rate), in quarter 1 to 4.2% in quarter 2, but also an upturn in inflationary pressures.  
With inflation moving towards 3%, the Fed increased rates another 0.25% in September to 
between 2.00% and 2.25%, this being four increases in 2018, and indicated they expected to 
increase rates four more times by the end of 2019.   The dilemma, however, is what to do when the 
temporary boost to consumption wanes, particularly as the recent imposition of tariffs on a number 
of countries’ exports to the US, (China in particular), could see a switch to US production of some 
of those goods, but at higher prices.  Such a scenario would invariably make any easing of 
monetary policy harder for the Fed in the second half of 2019.

Page 103



EUROZONE.  Growth was unchanged at 0.4% in quarter 2, but has undershot early forecasts for a 
stronger economic performance in 2018. In particular, data from Germany has been mixed and it 
could be negatively impacted by US tariffs on a significant part of manufacturing exports e.g. cars.   
For that reason, although growth is still expected to be in the region of 2% for 2018, the horizon is 
less clear than it seemed just a short while ago. 

CHINA. Economic growth has been weakening over successive years, despite repeated rounds of 
central bank stimulus; medium term risks are increasing. Major progress still needs to be made to 
eliminate excess industrial capacity and the stock of unsold property, and to address the level of 
non-performing loans in the banking and credit systems.

JAPAN - has been struggling to stimulate consistent significant Gross Domestic Product (GDP) 
growth and to get inflation up to its target of 2%, despite huge monetary and fiscal stimulus. It is 
also making little progress on fundamental reform of the economy. 

INTEREST RATE FORECASTS

The Council’s treasury advisor, Link Asset Services, has provided the following forecast:

 Sep-
18

Dec-
18

Mar-
19

Jun-
19

Sep-
19

Dec-
19

Mar-
20

Jun-
20

Sep-
20

Dec-
20

Mar-
21

Bank 
Rate 0.75% 0.75% 0.75% 0.75% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.25% 1.25% 1.50% 1.50%

3
 Month 
LIBID**

0.75% 0.80% 0.80% 0.90% 1.10% 1.10% 1.20% 1.40% 1.50% 1.60% 1.60%

6 
Month 
LIBID**

0.85% 0.90% 0.90% 1.00% 1.20% 1.20% 1.30% 1.50% 1.60% 1.70% 1.70%

12 
Month 
LIBID**

1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.10% 1.30% 1.30% 1.40% 1.60% 1.70% 1.80% 1.80%

5yr 
PWLB*

rate
2.00% 2.00% 2.10% 2.20% 2.20% 2.30% 2.30% 2.40% 2.50% 2.50% 2.60%

10yr 
PWLB* 

rate
2.40% 2.50% 2.50% 2.60% 2.70% 2.70% 2.80% 2.90% 2.90% 3.00% 3.10%

25yr 
PWLB* 

rate
2.80% 2.90% 3.00% 3.10% 3.10% 3.20% 3.30% 3.30% 3.40% 3.50% 3.50%

50yr 
PWLB* 

rate
2.60% 2.70% 2.80% 2.90% 2.90% 3.00% 3.10% 3.10% 3.20% 3.30% 3.30%

*  PWLB – Public Works Loan Board
**LIBID - London Interbank Bid Rate (investment rates)

Page 104



The flow of generally positive economic statistics after the end of the quarter ended 30 June meant that 
it came as no surprise that the MPC came to a decision on 2 August to make the first increase in Bank 
Rate above 0.5% since the financial crash, to 0.75%.  However, the MPC emphasised again, that future 
Bank Rate increases would be gradual and would rise to a much lower equilibrium rate, (where 
monetary policy is neither expansionary of contractionary), than before the crash; indeed they gave a 
figure for this of around 2.5% in ten years’ time but they declined to give a medium term forecast.  We 
do not think that the MPC will increase Bank Rate in February 2019, ahead of the deadline in March for 
Brexit.  We also feel that the MPC is more likely to wait until August 2019, than May 2019, before the 
next increase, to be followed by further increases of 0.25% in May and November 2020 to reach 1.5%. 
However, the cautious pace of even these limited increases is dependent on a reasonably orderly 
Brexit.

The balance of risks to the UK

 The overall balance of risks to economic growth in the UK is probably neutral.
 The balance of risks to increases in Bank Rate and shorter term PWLB rates, are probably also 

even and are broadly dependent on how strong GDP growth turns out, how slowly inflation 
pressures subside, and how quickly the Brexit negotiations move forward positively. 

Downside risks to current forecasts for UK gilt yields and PWLB rates currently include: 

 Bank of England monetary policy takes action too quickly over the next three years to raise Bank 
Rate and causes UK economic growth, and increases in inflation, to be weaker than we 
currently anticipate. 

 A resurgence of the Eurozone sovereign debt crisis, possibly Italy, due to its high level of 
government debt, low rate of economic growth and vulnerable banking system, and due to the 
election in March of a government which has made a lot of anti-austerity noise.  This is likely to 
lead to friction with the European Union (EU) when setting the target for the fiscal deficit in the 
national budget. Unsurprisingly, investors have taken a dim view of this and so Italian bond 
yields have been rising.

 Austria, the Czech Republic and Hungary now form a strongly anti-immigration bloc within the 
EU while Italy, this year, has also elected a strongly anti-immigration government.  In the 
German general election of September 2017, Angela Merkel’s CDU party was left in a 
vulnerable minority position as a result of the rise of the anti-immigration AfD party.  To 
compound this, the result of the Swedish general election in September 2018 has left an anti-
immigration party potentially holding the balance of power in forming a coalition government. 
The challenges from these political developments could put considerable pressure on the 
cohesion of the EU and could spill over into impacting the euro, EU financial policy and financial 
markets. 

 The imposition of trade tariffs by President Trump could negatively impact world growth. 
President Trump’s specific actions against Turkey pose a particular risk to its economy which 
could, in turn, negatively impact Spanish and French banks which have significant exposures to 
loans to Turkey. 

 Weak capitalisation of some European banks.
 Rising interest rates in the US could negatively impact emerging countries which have borrowed 

heavily in dollar denominated debt, so causing an investor flight to safe havens e.g. UK gilts. 
 Geopolitical risks, especially North Korea, but also in Europe and the Middle East, which could 

lead to increasing safe haven flows. 

Page 105



Upside risks to current forecasts for UK gilt yields and PWLB rates

 President Trump’s fiscal plans to stimulate economic expansion causing a significant 
increase in inflation in the US and causing further sell offs of government bonds in major 
western countries.

 The Fed causing a sudden shock in financial markets through misjudging the pace and 
strength of increases in its Fed. Funds Rate and in the pace and strength of reversal of 
Quantitative Easing (QE), which then leads to a fundamental reassessment by investors of 
the relative risks of holding bonds, as opposed to equities.  This could lead to a major flight 
from bonds to equities and a sharp increase in bond yields in the US, which could then spill 
over into impacting bond yields around the world.

 The Bank of England is too slow in its pace and strength of increases in Bank Rate and, 
therefore, allows inflation pressures to build up too strongly within the UK economy, which 
then necessitates a later rapid series of increases in Bank Rate faster than we currently 
expect. 

 UK inflation, whether domestically generated or imported, returning to sustained 
significantly higher levels causing an increase in the inflation premium inherent to gilt yields. 

Page 106



APPENDIX B

Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy Update 
2018/19

The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2018/19 was approved by 
Council on 8 March 2018.

There are no policy changes to the TMSS; the details in this report update the position in the 
light of the updated economic position and budgetary changes already approved.  

The Council’s Capital Position (Prudential Indicators)

This part of the report is structured to update:
 The Council’s capital expenditure plans;
 How these plans are being financed;
 The impact of the changes in the capital expenditure plans on the prudential 
   indicators and the underlying need to borrow; and
 Compliance with the limits in place for borrowing activity.

Prudential Indicator for Capital Expenditure
This table shows the revised estimates for capital expenditure and the changes since the 
capital programme was agreed at the Budget.
 
Capital Expenditure 2018-19

Original
Programme

£’000

2018-19
Latest 

Approved
£’000

Position
As At

30-09-18
£’000

2018-19
Forecast 
Outturn

£’000

General Fund 4,065 4,702 1,254 4,123
Housing Revenue Account 
(HRA) 9,220 7,450 1,318 5,943

Total 13,285 12,152 2,572 10,066

Changes to the Financing of the Capital Programme  
The table below draws together the main strategy elements of the capital expenditure plans 
(above), highlighting the original supported and unsupported elements of the capital 
programme, and the expected financing arrangements of this capital expenditure.  

Capital Expenditure 2018-19
Original

Programme
£’000

2018-19
Latest 

Approved
£’000

Position
As At

30-09-18
£’000

2018-19
Forecast 
Outturn

£’000
General Fund 4,065 4,702 1,254  4,123
HRA 9,220 7,450 1,318  5,943
Total spend 13,285 12,152 2,572  10,066
Financed by:
Capital receipts 1,821 1,208 75 606
Capital grants and Contributions 1,556 1,620 490 1,435
Major Repairs Reserve 8,100 6,846 1,306 5,639
Direct Revenue Funding 100 770 403 748
Total financing 11,577 10,444 2,274 8,428
Borrowing need 1,708 1,708 298 1,638

Page 107



APPENDIX B

The borrowing need shown in the above table is the Council’s purchase of an additional 
equity stake in Welland Homes and the loans made to Welland Homes. This capital 
expenditure has not been financed and therefore creates a borrowing requirement. Rather 
than take out external borrowing, the Council is utilising its cash balances and internally 
borrowing to finance the capital expenditure.

Changes to the Prudential Indicators for the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), 
External Debt and the Operational Boundary.

The following table shows the CFR, which is the underlying external need to incur borrowing 
for a capital purpose. 

It also shows the expected debt position over the period. This is termed the Operational 
Boundary.

Limits to Borrowing Activity

The first key control over the treasury activity is a prudential indicator to ensure that over the 
medium term, net borrowing (borrowings less investments) will only be for a capital purpose.  
Gross external borrowing should not, except in the short term, exceed the total of CFR in the 
preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for 2018/19 and next two financial 
years.  This allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future years.  The Council 
has approved a policy for borrowing in advance of need which will be adhered to if this 
proves prudent.

2018-19
Original 
Estimate

For Year End
£’000

2018-19
Latest 

Approved
For Year End

£’000

Position
As At

30-09-18
£’000

2018-19
Forecast
 Outturn

For Year End
£’000

Prudential Indicator – CFR
CFR – non housing           5,555     5,555     4,145      5,485
CFR – housing         68,439   68,439   68,439    68,439
Total CFR         73,994   73,994   72,584    73,924

Net movement in CFR           1,708     1,708     298      1,638

Prudential Indicator – External Debt / Operational Boundary
Borrowing  67,456 67,456  67,456 67,456

Other long term liabilities 0 0           0 0

Total debt  31 March 67,456 67,456  67,456 67,456

Page 108



APPENDIX B

The Executive Director Commercialisation (Section 151 Officer) reports that no difficulties 
are envisaged for the current or future years in complying with this prudential indicator.  

A further prudential indicator controls the overall level of borrowing.  This is the Authorised 
Limit which represents the limit beyond which borrowing is prohibited, and needs to be set 
and revised by Members.  It reflects the level of borrowing which, while not desired, could be 
afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the longer term.  It is the expected 
maximum borrowing need with some headroom for unexpected movements. This is the 
statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local Government Act 2003.

The limit of £1m for long term liabilities shown above provides headroom for the Council to 
take out finance leases for capital assets rather than outright purchase. Prior to taking out a 
finance lease, a full option appraisal would be carried out to ensure it is the most cost 
effective way of financing the capital expenditure.

Investment Portfolio 2018/19

In accordance with the Code, it is the Council’s priority to ensure security of capital and 
liquidity, and to obtain an appropriate level of return which is consistent with the Council’s 
risk policy.  As set out in Appendix A, it is a very difficult investment market in terms of 
earning the level of interest rates commonly seen in previous decades as rates are very low 
and in line with the current 0.75% bank rate.  The continuing potential for a re-emergence of 
a Eurozone sovereign debt crisis, and its impact on banks, prompts a low risk and short term 
strategy.  Given this risk environment and the fact that increases in Bank Rate are likely to 
be gradual and unlikely to return to the levels seen in previous decades, investment returns 
are likely to remain low.

2018-19
Original 
Estimate
For Year 

End
£’000

2018-19
Revised
Estimate
For Year 

End
£’000

Position
As At

30/09/18
£’000

2018-19
Forecast
 Outturn
For Year 

End
£’000

Gross borrowing 67,456 67,456 67,456 67,456
Less investments (31,180) (36,000) (45,600) (36,000)
Net borrowing 36,276 31,456 21,856 31,456
CFR (year-end position) 73,994 73,994 72,584 73,924

Authorised limit for external debt 2018-19
Original 
Estimate

For Year End
£’000

Position
As
At

30/09/18
£’000

2018-19
Revised
Estimate

For Year End
£’000

Borrowing 89,456 89,456 89,456

Other long term liabilities   1,000   1,000   1,000

Total 90,456 90,456 90,456

Page 109



APPENDIX B

The Council held £43.777m of investments and £1.827m of loans to Welland Homes as at 30 September 2018 (£36.540m and £1.529m as at 
31 March 2018). The investment portfolio yield for the first six months of the year is 0.84% against a benchmark of 0.61% (average 3 month 
LIBID). Deposits held excluding accrued interest were as follows:

Institution Investment
Type

Start 
Date

Maturity
Date

Rate/
Return 

%

As at
31-03-18

£’000

As at
30-09-18

£’000
UK Municipal Bonds Agency  Equity n/a n/a n/a      50      50
Welland Homes Equity n/a n/a n/a    877    877
Lloyds Bank Current Account Instant Access n/a n/a 0.65        0      85
Svenska Handelsbanken Instant Access n/a n/a 0.67   513 1,965
CCLA Money Market Fund Instant Access n/a n/a 0.69 2,600 2,800
Royal Bank of Scotland (BBB+) Certificate of Deposit 13/04/17 13/04/18 0.70 5,000 0
Qatar National Bank Time Deposit 18/04/17 18/04/18 0.83 1,000 0
Coventry Building Society (A) Time Deposit 03/11/17 03/05/18 0.54 4,000 0
Telford & Wrekin Council Time Deposit 19/03/18 21/05/18 0.85 3,000 0
First Abu Dhabi Bank (AA-) Time Deposit 01/06/17 01/06/18 0.60 5,000 0
Lloyds Bank (A) Time Deposit 21/11/17 20/11/18 0.90 2,500 2,500
London Borough of Enfield Time Deposit 02/02/18 01/02/19 0.78 5,000 5,000
Oadby & Wigston Borough Council Time Deposit 14/02/18 13/02/19 0.78 3,000 3,000
Cambridgeshire County Council Time Deposit 28/02/18 27/02/19 1.00 4,000 4,000
Ards & North Down Borough Council Time Deposit 03/05/18 05/11/18 0.75 0 1,000
Goldman Sachs International Bank (A) Time Deposit 03/05/18 02/11/18 0.79 0 2,000
National Bank of Canada (A+) Time Deposit 14/05/18 14/11/18 0.70 0 2,500
Australia & New Zealand Bank (AA-) Time Deposit 18/06/18 18/03/19 0.82 0 2,500
National Westminster Bank (A-) Certificate of Deposit 19/06/18 19/06/19 0.93 0 2,500
Standard Chartered (A+) Certificate of Deposit 16/07/18 16/01/19 0.83 0 3,000
Birmingham City Council Time Deposit 22/08/18 22/11/18 0.82 0 5,000
Lancashire County Council Time Deposit 03/09/18 02/09/19 1.10 0 3,000
Boston Borough Council Time Deposit 06/09/18 05/10/18 1.00 0 2,000
TOTAL     36,540   43,777

P
age 110



APPENDIX B

In addition to the investments listed, the Council has issued two loans to Welland Homes
which are classified as Long Term Debtors. The balance and details of these loans as at
30 September 2018 are as follows:

Loan 1 - £1,341,643 @ 3.5% repayable on 17/03/47.
Loan 2 - £485,240 @ 5.5%. This is a development loan and once the development has

   been completed the rate reduces to 3.5% in accordance with the loan agreement.

The Executive Director Commercialisation (Section 151 Officer) confirms that the approved 
limits within the Annual Investment Strategy were not breached during the first six months of 
2018/19.

The Council’s budgeted investment return for 2018/19 is £258,000 (GF £196,000, HRA 
£62,000) and performance for the year to date is £184,510 (GF £129,175, HRA £55,335). 
Expectation is that the outturn for investment returns will be approximately £375,000 (GF 
£266,200, HRA £108,800).

The increased levels of investment interest achieved can be attributed to higher levels of 
investment balances being held and also higher than anticipated interest rate levels in the 
market, in particular the inter-authority rates which are now higher than those offered by 
financial institutions.

The Council monitors risk of its investment portfolio against the Link Asset Services 
counterparty risk matrix.  This matrix gives recommended maximum investment durations for 
each financial institution based on the ratings allocated by the major credit rating agency’s 
and also takes into account credit default swap prices.

Investment Counterparty Criteria

The current investment counterparty criteria selection approved in the TMSS is meeting the 
requirement of the treasury management function.  

Borrowing

The Council’s projected capital financing requirement (CFR) for the end of 2018/19 is 
£73.924m.  The CFR denotes the Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital purposes.  
If the CFR is positive the Council may borrow from the PWLB or the market (external 
borrowing) or from internal balances on a temporary basis (internal borrowing).  The balance 
of external and internal borrowing is generally driven by market conditions.  The Council has 
borrowings of £67.456m in respect of the Housing Revenue Account self-financing 
settlement. 

The following graph shows the movement in PWLB rates for the first six months of the year 
to 30 September 2018:

Page 111



APPENDIX B

Debt Rescheduling

The majority of the Councils debt was taken out in March 2012 as part of the HRA Financing 
Reforms. Debt rescheduling opportunities have been very limited in the current economic 
climate given the consequent structure of interest rates, and following the increase in the 
margin added to gilt yields which has impacted PWLB new borrowing rates since October 
2010.  No debt rescheduling has therefore been undertaken to date in the current financial 
year.

OTHER 

UK Banks – ring fencing

The largest UK banks, (those with more than £25bn of retail / Small and Medium-sized 
Enterprise (SME) deposits), are required, by UK law, to separate core retail banking services 
from their investment and international banking activities by 1 January 2019. This is known 
as “ring-fencing”. Whilst smaller banks with less than £25bn in deposits are exempt, they can 
choose to opt up. Several banks are very close to the threshold already and so may come 
into scope in the future regardless.

Ring-fencing is a regulatory initiative created in response to the global financial crisis. It 
mandates the separation of retail and SME deposits from investment banking, in order to 
improve the resilience and resolvability of banks by changing their structure. In general, 
simpler, activities offered from within a ring-fenced bank, (RFB), will be focused on lower 
risk, day-to-day core transactions, whilst more complex and “riskier” activities are required to 
be housed in a separate entity, a non-ring-fenced bank, (NRFB). This is intended to ensure 
that an entity’s core activities are not adversely affected by the acts or omissions of other 
members of its group.

Page 112



APPENDIX B

While the structure of the banks included within this process may have changed, the 
fundamentals of credit assessment have not. The Council will continue to assess the new-
formed entities in the same way that it does others and those with sufficiently high ratings, 
(and any other metrics considered), will be considered for investment purposes.

IFRS9 accounting standard 

This accounting standard came into effect from 1 April 2018.  It means that the category of 
investments valued under the available for sale category will be removed and any potential 
fluctuations in market valuations may impact onto the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services, rather than being held on the balance sheet.  This change is unlikely to materially 
affect the commonly used types of treasury management investments but more specialist 
types of investments, (e.g. pooled funds, third party loans, commercial investments), are 
likely to be impacted.  

Changes in risk policy

The 2018 CIPFA Codes and guidance notes have placed enhanced importance on risk 
management.  Where an authority changes its risk policy e.g. for moving surplus cash into or 
out of certain types of investment funds or other types of investment instruments, this 
change in risk policy should be brought to members’ attention in treasury management 
update reports.

There has been no change in risk policy to report.

UK Municipal Bonds Agency Update

The UK Municipal Bonds Agency is owned by councils and the Local Government 
Association. South Holland DC has a £50,000 equity stake in the company.

Its aim is to offer lower cost borrowing to councils and to secure a sustainable alternative to 
the Public Works Loan Board for council borrowing.

Page 113



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Executive Manager - Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer) – Mark Stinson

To: Governance and Audit Committee - Thursday, 18 October 2018 

(Author: Christine Morgan Democratic Services Officer)

Subject Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme

Purpose: To set out the Work Programme of the Governance and Audit Committee

Recommendation:

That the Committee gives consideration to the content of this report and identifies any issues for 
discussion.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Governance and Audit Committee regularly considers a variety of reports from Internal 
Audit, External Audit and the Section 151 Officer.

1.2 Many of these reports are considered at regular intervals, the majority being annually, half-
yearly or quarterly.

1.3 In addition to these reports, the Committee also considers issues on an ad-hoc basis with 
some reports arising from consideration of items at previous meetings.

1.4 Attached at Appendix A to this report is the Work Programme for the Governance and Audit 
Committee.  It lays out all meetings for the 2018/19 municipal year. Alongside each of 
these meeting dates are issues considered by the Committee on a regular basis together 
with the author of the report, its purpose and whether it is mandatory, and the frequency 
with which it is considered.
 

1.5 It has been agreed that this Work Programme be a regular item for consideration on the 
Committee’s agenda, thus creating a formal document laying out the work of the 
Committee in a clear, structured and organised way.

1.6 The attached document contains items considered on a regular basis, and also any ad hoc 
issues as and when they arise, for example, issues raised at a meeting to be covered at a 
future meeting, and any one-off issues. 

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 To note and consider the current status of the Work Programme. 

2.2 To do nothing.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 To allow Committee members to feed into the Work Programme on a regular basis, to 
ensure that it stays relevant and up to date.

Page 115

Agenda Item 11.



4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The Work Programme is a formal document laying out the work of the Committee in a 
clear, structured and organised way, thus providing members with up to date and relevant 
information.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Constitution & Legal

5.1.1 Constitutional and Legal implications have been considered and in the opinion of the 
author, there are none arising out of this report.   However, the Work Programme should 
assist in providing a clear programme of work for the Governance and Audit Committee in 
line with the requirements laid out in the Council’s Constitution.

5.2 Risk Management 

5.2.1 Risk Management implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author, 
there are none.  However, one of the roles of the Governance and Audit Committee is to 
monitor the effective development and operation of risk management and corporate 
governance in the Council, and the Work Programme should assist in keeping track of risk 
issues.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 No wards or communities will be affected by this post.

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 None.

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Christine Morgan Democratic Services Officer
Telephone Number 01775 764454
Email: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No
Exempt Decision: No

This report refers to a Mandatory Service

Appendices attached to this report: 

Appendix A Work Programme for the Governance and Audit Committee

Page 116



APPENDIX A
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT – CALENDAR OF WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS 2018/19

Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency

18 October 2018 SHDC Annual Audit Letter 2017/18 External Audit
(KPMG)

Mandatory/Consultation requirement
To approve audit fees

Annually

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2018-19

Internal Audit To update Committee on progress of 
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

To each 
meeting

Follow up report on Internal Audit 
recommendations

Internal Audit Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

To each 
meeting

Governance and Audit Committee Self 
Assessment

Internal Audit For confirmation.
Good practice.

Annual

Mid Term Treasury Report 18/19 Section 151 Officer To comply with Treasury 
Management Strategy, reporting 
requirements

Half Yearly

Q2 2018-19 Risk Report Ross Bangs/Corey 
Gooch

Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting

Risk Management Policy – consideration 
of a draft of the revised policy

Ross Bangs Part of Governance role When policy 
revised

17 January 2019 Grant Claims 2017/18 External Audit
(KPMG)

External Audit Certification of Grant 
Claims – Mandatory Approval

Annual

Progress Report and Technical Update External Audit
(Ernst &  Young)

To update the Committee on progress 
with the external audit

Twice a year

P
age 117



Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2018-19

Internal Audit To update Committee on progress of 
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

To each 
meeting

Follow up report on Internal Audit 
recommendations

Internal Audit Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

To each 
meeting

Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision 
Policy Statement and Annual Investment 
Strategy 19/20

Section 151 Officer Mandatory requirement
To review Treasury Management 
Strategy and approve Prudential 
Indicators

Annual

14 March 2019 Audit Plan External Audit
(Ernst & Young)

External Audit Plan – Mandatory 
Approval

Annual

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2018-19

Internal Audit To update Committee on progress of 
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

To each 
meeting

Strategic and Annual Internal Audit Plan 
2019/20

Internal Audit Annual Internal Audit Workplan -
Mandatory approval

Annual

Follow up report on Internal Audit 
recommendations

Internal Audit Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

To each 
meeting

Audit Mandatory Inquiries Section 151 Officer To confirm the response of the 
external audit mandatory inquiries. 
External auditors are required to 
obtain an understanding on how those 
charged with governance exercise 
oversight of management’s processes 

Annual

P
age 118



Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency

in relation to fraud, laws and 
regulations and going concerns.
Good Practice

Q3 2018-19 Risk Report Ross Bangs/Corey 
Gooch

Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting

The following item to be added to the Committee’s Work Programme on an ad hoc basis, where there is information to report:

 The Head of Internal Audit to present a performance report detailing levels and types of fraud.  

P
age 119



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3. Minutes
	4. Quarter 2 2018-19 Risk Report
	Appendix 1 for Quarter 2 2018-19 Risk Report

	5. Risk Management Policy
	Appendix 1 for Revised Risk Policy

	6. SHDC Annual Audit Letter 2017-18
	7. Progress report on Internal Audit activity
	SHDC Progress report on IA activity 201819

	8. Follow up report on Internal Audit recommendations
	Follow Up on  IA recs year end 2

	9. Governance and Audit Committee Self Assessment
	App 1 - checklist

	10. Mid Term Treasury Report 2018/19
	Appendix A for Mid Term Treasury Report 2018/19
	Appendix B for Mid Term Treasury Report 2018/19

	11. Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme
	Appendix A


